THE STATE OF TEXAS 8
§
COUNTY OF BRAZORIA 8
MODIFICATION TO TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENT WITH
ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS TEXAS, INC.

FOR PROPERTY LOCATED IN
BRAZORIA COUNTY REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 22-01

This Modification to Tax Abatement Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the
“Modification”) is made and entered into by and between Brazoria County ("County™) and
ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS TEXAS, INC., a corporation authorized to do
business in Texas ("Owner"), the owner of taxable real property in Brazoria County, Texas,
located in BRAZORIA COUNTY REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 22-01 ("Reinvestment
Zone").

AUTHORIZATION

This Modification is authorized under Section 312.208 of the Texas Tax Code because (i)
the provisions of this modification could have been included in the original Agreement and (ii)
this modification has been entered into following the same procedure in which the application
was approved and executed.

RECITALS

The County and Owner hereby agree that the following statements are true and correct
and constitute the basis upon which the County and Owner have entered into this Modification.

1. The County and Owner previously entered into a Tax Abatement Agreement
(attached hereto as Exhibit “A”) on file in the County Clerk’s Office under Commissioners Court
Order No. 7.N.3 and approved on September 27, 2022 (the “Agreement”). Under the
Agreement, Owner agreed to construct certain real property improvements on property in the
County and located within The Brazoria County Reinvestment Zone No. 22-01 in return for
certain real property tax abatements granted to Owner by the County.

2. The term of the abatement was to be effective on January 1, 2024.
3. Owner began construction on the project on or before December 2022.
4. In accordance with the Brazoria County Guidelines and Criteria for Granting Tax

Abatement, abatement shall begin the January 1 following the commencement of construction.

5. Because Owner has commenced the construction of the project prior to the
anticipated 2023 date, the effective date of the Agreement is January 1, 2023.



NOW THEREFORE, the County and Owner, for and in consideration of the terms and
conditions set forth herein, do hereby contract, covenant and agree as follows:

A. Section IV. VALUE AND TERM OF ABATEMENT is hereby modified to read
as follows:

4.01 This Tax Abatement shall be effective January 1, 2023 and shall continue for a
period of seven (7) years, or one-half (¥2) the productive life of the improvements, whichever is
less. One hundred percent (100%) of the value of New Eligible Properties shall be abated
subject to Section 4.03 herein below.

4.02 Pursuant to the above-provisions and subject to Section 4.03 herein below, the
term of abatement under this Agreement shall commence January 1, 2023 and continue through
December 31, 2029. The benefits of abatement shall continue throughout the last year in which
abatement is applied as long as the property and property owner continue to qualify for
abatement throughout the last year.

4.03 If pursuant to the above Section 4.01, it is determined upon completion of
improvements, or at any time thereafter (including after the term of abatement otherwise granted
under this Agreement) that one-half (2) the productive life of improvements is less than the term
of years of abatement under this Agreement, the term of abatement shall be reduced to one-half
(%2) the productive life of the improvements and Owner shall pay to County the full amount of
taxes otherwise abated in each year in which the term of abatement exceeded one-half (*2) of the
actual productive life of the improvements. The amount of taxes for part of a year, if applicable,
shall be determined by proration (by multiplying the amount of abated taxes for the entire year
by a fraction, the denominator of which is 365 and the numerator of which is the number of days
in excess of the term of abatement represented by one-half (*2) of the actual productive life of the
improvements).  Any recapture hereunder shall be payable within sixty (60) days of written
notice. Owner shall certify by statement to County and the Brazoria County Appraisal District
the estimated productive life of improvements upon completion of the construction; provided,
however Owner’s estimate of productive life shall not control the operation of this subsection.

4.04 Owners payment obligation under Section 4.03 is a continuing obligation. Owner
understands and agrees that this Agreement mandates that Owner’s abated improvements be in
active service and operation as part of a facility operating in a producing capacity for a period of
fourteen (14) years from the effective commencement date of this agreement (to December 31,
2036) in order for Owner to receive seven (7) full years of abatement that are not subject to the
term reduction and recapture/payment obligation provisions of Section 4.03 of this Agreement.

B. Section 9.04 is modified to read as follows:

9.04 Owner has a continuing obligation for a period of fourteen (14) years from the
effective commencement date of this Agreement (to December 31, 2036) to report to the County
any plant closure or permanent cessation of production at the abated facility and to furnish to
County upon request a written confirmation as to whether or not the abated improvements are in



service as part of a producing facility or, if applicable, a statement of the beginning and ending
dates of production from and/or the beginning and ending dates of operation of the abated
facility improvements; or to provide other similar information necessary to determine the actual
or estimated productive life of the abated improvements.

C. Except as otherwise specifically amended in this Modification, the Agreement
shall remain in full force and effect.

D. This Modification contains the entire understanding and agreement between the
County and Owner, their assigns and successors in interest, as to the matters contained herein.

This Modification 1s executed by the parties in multiple originals, each having full force
and effect, and the effective date of this agreement is the date of the countersignature of the
County Judge.

BRAZORIA COUNTY

By:
L.M. “MATT” SEBESTA, JR.
COUNTY JUDGE

BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS

Date signed:

ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS
TEXAS, INC.

-

&
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By: S A= P
Name:_ /2 0e, & frter
Title: 7oy Lrrectu-

Date signed: ./ 29/ 2
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THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA

§
§
§

TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENT WITH
ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS TEXAS, INC.
FOR PROPERTY LOCATED IN
BRAZORIA COUNTY REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 22-01

This Tax Abatement Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement") is made and
entered into by and between Brazoria County ("County"), and Ascend Performance Materials Texas,
Inc., a corporation authorized to do business in Texas, hereinafter referred to as "Owner" of taxable
real property in Brazoria County, Texas, located in the BRAZORIA COUNTY REINVESTMENT
ZONE NO. 22-01 ("Reinvestment Zone").

1.01

I. AUTHORIZATION

This Agreement is authorized by the Texas Property Redevelopment and Tax

Abatement Act, V.A.T.S. Tax Code, Chapter 312, as amended, and by Order of the Brazoria County
Commissioners Court approving this Abatement.

2.01

II. DEFINITIONS
As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:
“Certified Appraised Value” means the January Ist appraised value of the property

within the Reinvestment Zone as certified by the Brazoria County Appraisal District as
of the January 1st valuation date.

“Abatement” means the full or partial exemption from ad valorem taxes of certain
property in a reinvestment zone designated for economic development purposes.

“Eligible Property” means the buildings, structures, tangible personal property as
defined in the Texas Tax Code including fixed machinery and equipment, process units,
site improvements, and related fixed improvements necessary to the operation and
administration of the facility.

“New_Eligible Property” means Eligible Property construction of which commences
subsequent to the date of Commissioners Court Action approving the Tax Abatement.
During the construction phase of the New Eligible Property, the Owner may make such
change orders to the New Eligible Property as are reasonably necessary to accomplish
its intended use.

“Ineligible Property” means land, existing improvements, tangible personal property
that the Brazoria County Appraisal District classifies as inventory and supplies, tools,
furnishings and other forms of movable personal property, vehicles, watercraft, aircraft,
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housing, convalescent homes, assisted living homes/centers, hotel accommodations,
retail facilities, deferred maintenance investments, property to be rented or leased
except as provided in Section 2(f), tangible personal property located in the
reinvestment zone prior to the effective date of this Agreement, property that is already
subject to real or personal property tax moved from one location in Brazoria County to
the reinvestment zone, real property with a productive life of less than 10 years,
property owned or used by the State of Texas or its political subdivisions or by any
organization owned, operated or directed by a political subdivision of the State of
Texas, or any other property for which abatement is not allowed by State law.

f. “Actual Productive Life” means the actual period of time the improvements were in
active service and operation as part of a facility operating in a producing capacity, and
this definition supersedes any other definition stated elsewhere.

2.02 The Guidelines and Criteria for Granting Tax Abatement in a Reinvestment Zone
created in Brazoria County, adopted by the Brazoria County Commissioners Court, are attached hereto
as Exhibit B and made a part hereof. All definitions set forth therein are applicable to this Agreement.

III. SUBJECT PROPERTY

3.01 The Reinvestment Zone is an area generally described as approximately 15.429 acres of
land in Brazoria County, Texas. The legal description of the Reinvestment Zone is attached hereto as
Exhibit C.

3.02 The Brazoria County Appraisal District has established values for the land, personal
property, and improvements of Owner in the subject property or of certain tracts of land from which
the subject tract of land is derived as of January 1, 2022. Such values are attached hereto as Exhibit D.

IV. VALUE AND TERM OF ABATEMENT

4.01 This Tax Abatement shall be effective January 1, 2024 and shall continue for a period
of seven (7) years, or one-half (%) the productive life of the improvements, whichever is less. One
hundred percent (100%) of the value of New Eligible Properties shall be abated subject to Section 4.03
herein below.

4.02  Pursuant to the above-provisions and subject to Section 4.03 herein below, the term of
abatement under this Agreement shall commence January 1, 2024 and continue through December 31,
2030. The benefits of abatement shall continue throughout the last year in which abatement is applied
as long as the property and property owner continue to qualify for abatement throughout the last year.
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4.03 If pursuant to the above Section 4.01, it is determined upon completion of
improvements, or at any time thereafter (including after the term of abatement otherwise granted under
this Agreement) that one-half (}%) the productive life of improvements is less than the term of years of
abatement under this Agreement, the term of abatement shall be reduced to one-half (/%) the productive
life of the improvements and Owner shall pay to County the full amount of taxes otherwise abated in
each year in which the term of abatement exceeded one-half (%) of the actual productive life of the
improvements. The amount of taxes for part of a year, if applicable, shall be determined by proration
(by multiplying the amount of abated taxes for the entire year by a fraction, the denominator of which
is 365 and the numerator of which is the number of days in excess of the term of abatement
represented by one-half (%) of the actual productive life of the improvements). Any recapture
hereunder shall be payable within sixty (60) days of written notice. Owner shall certify by statement to
County and the Brazoria County Appraisal District the estimated productive life of improvements upon
completion of the construction; provided, however Owner’s estimate of productive life shall not
control the operation of this subsection.

4.04 Owners payment obligation under Section 4.03 is a continuing obligation. Owner
understands and agrees that this Agreement mandates that Owner’s abated improvements be in active
service and operation as part of a facility operating in a producing capacity for a period of fourteen
(14) years from the effective commencement date of this agreement (to December 31, 2037) in order
for Owner to receive seven (7) full years of abatement that are not subject to the term reduction and
recapture/payment obligation provisions of Section 4.03 of this Agreement.

V. TAXABILITY

5.01 During the period that this Tax Abatement is effective, taxes shall be payable as
follows:

(a) The value of Ineligible Property shall be fully taxable;

(b) the Certified Appraised Value of existing Eligible Property as determined each year
shall be fully taxable; and

(c) the value of New Eligible Property shall be abated as set forth in Section [V herein.
VI. PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS AND EMPLOYMENT

6.01  As set forth in the Application attached as Exhibit A, the Owner represents that it will
modernize the current acrylonitrile facility and construct a recovery, purification, and production
facility for acetonitrile. The estimated value of eligible improvements at the end of this Agreement
indicated in the application is $76,000,000.00.
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6.02 The Owner represents and warrants that this project will retain at least 250 full-time
jobs. In addition, the Owner represents and warrants that the level of employment stated in the
abatement application (including the projected creation or retention of employment) will be maintained
for the duration of the abatement period. It is further represented that this project will provide an
estimated 100 construction jobs at the beginning of construction, with a peak load of 400 construction
jobs during the course of construction and 100 such jobs upon completion.

6.03  All improvements shall be completed in accordance with all applicable law.

6.04 The Owner shall not make any use of the property that is inconsistent with the general
purpose of encouraging development or redevelopment of the reinvestment zone during the period that
the property tax exemptions are in effect.

6.05 The Owner estimated in its application that construction of the improvements will begin
in the first quarter of 2023 with completion estimated by December of 2024,

VII. EVENT OF DEFAULT

7.01 During the abatement period covered by this Agreement, the County may declare a
default hereunder by the Owner if:

(a) the Owner fails to commence construction of the new facility described in Section VI
above, and the Application attached hereto as Exhibit A within two (2) years of the
Effective Date;

(b) the Owner fails to construct the new facility described in Section VI above;

(c) the Owner refuses or neglects to comply with any of the terms of this Agreement;

(d) any representation made by the Owner in this Agreement is false or misleading in any
material respect; or

(e) the constructed facility fails to meet the economic qualifications of Section 2(h) of the
Brazoria County Guidelines & Criteria for Granting Tax Abatement. The economic
qualifications of Section 2(h) of the Brazoria County Guidelines and Criteria for
Granting Tax Abatement expressly include the requirement that the level of
employment stated in the Application for the property that is the subject of the Tax
Abatement Agreement be maintained for the duration of the abatement period.

7.02  Should the County determine the Owner to be in default of this Agreement, the County
shall notify the Owner in writing prior to the end of the abatement period, and if such default is not
cured within sixty (60) days from the date of such notice ("Cure Period"), then this Agreement may be
terminated; provided, however, that in the case of a default that for causes beyond Owner's reasonable
control cannot with due diligence be cured within such sixty-day period, the Cure Period shall be
deemed extended if Owner (i) shall immediately, upon the receipt of such notice, advise the County of

4
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Owner's intention to institute all steps necessary to cure such default and (ii) shall institute and
thereafter prosecute to completion with reasonable dispatch all steps necessary to cure same.

7.03 In the event the Owner allows its ad valorem taxes owed the County to become
delinquent and fails to timely and properly follow the legal procedures for their protest and/or contest,
or if the Owner defaults and/or violates any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and fails to
cure during the Cure Period, this Agreement may then be terminated and all taxes previously abated by
virtue of this Agreement will be recaptured and paid within sixty (60) days of termination.

7.04 In the event the facility contemplated herein is completed and begins producing product
or service, but the Owner fails to maintain the level of employment (including the projected creation or
retention of employment) set forth in Section 6.02, the County may elect to: (a) Declare a default and
terminate this Agreement without recapturing prior years’ abated taxes; (b) Declare a default, terminate
this Agreement and order a recapture of all or part of the previous years’ abated taxes; (c) Set specific
terms and conditions for the continuation of the abatement exemption for the duration of the term of
this Agreement under its present terms or alter the amount of the abatement for the remaining term of
this Agreement; or (d) Order recapture pursuant to the provisions of Section 4.03 of this Agreement, if
applicable.

VIII. ADMINISTRATION

8.01 This Agreement shall be administered on behalf of the County by the Commissioners
Court and/or other persons appointed by the Commissioners Court. The Owner shall allow authorized
employees and/or representatives of the County who have been designated and approved by
Commissioners Court to have access to this Reinvestment Zone during the term of this Agreement to
inspect the facility to determine compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. All
inspections will be made at a mutually agreeable time after the giving of forty-eight (48) hours prior
notice and will only be conducted in such manner as to not unreasonably interfere with the
construction and/or operation of the facility. All inspections will be made with one or more
representatives of the Owner and in accordance with the Owner's safety standards.

8.02 Upon completion of the contemplated construction, the Tax Abatement Review
Committee and/or other persons appointed by Commissioners Court shall annually evaluate the facility
to ensure compliance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement and shall report possible
defaults to the Commissioners Court.

8.03 The Chief Appraiser of the Brazoria County Appraisal District annually shall determine

(a) the taxable value pursuant to the terms of this abatement of the real and personal property

comprising this Reinvestment Zone and (b) the full taxable value without abatement of the real and

personal property comprising this Reinvestment Zone. The Chief Appraiser shall record both the

abated taxable value and the full taxable value in the appraisal records. The full taxable value figure
5
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listed in the appraisal records shall be used to compute the amount of abated taxes that are required to
be captured and paid in the event this Agreement is terminated in a manner that results in recapture.
Each year the Owner shall furnish the Chief Appraiser with such information outlined in Chapter 22,
V.A.T.S. Tax Code, as may be necessary for the administration of the abatement specified herein.

8.04 If the County terminates this Agreement, it shall provide Owner written notice of such
termination. If Owner believes that such termination was improper, Owner may file suit in the Brazoria
County District Courts appealing such termination within ninety (90) days after receipt from the
County of written notice of the termination. If an appeal suit is filed, Owner shall remit to the County,
within sixty (60) days after receipt of the notice of termination, any additional and/or recaptured taxes
as may be payable during the pendency of the litigation pursuant to the payment provisions of Section
42.08 V.A.T.S. Tax Code. If the final determination of the appeal increases Owner's tax liability above
the amount of tax paid, Owner shall remit the additional tax to the County pursuant to Section 42.42
V.A.T.S. Tax Code. If the final determination of the appeal decreases the Owner's tax liability, the
County shall refund to the Owner the difference between the amount of tax paid and the amount of tax
for which the Owner is liable pursuant to Section 42.43, V.A.T.S. Tax Code.

IX. INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OWNER

9.01 Pursuant to Section 5(a)(7) of the Brazoria County Guidelines and Criteria for Granting
Tax Abatement, Owner shall annually furnish information necessary for County's evaluation of
Owner's compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Brazoria County
Guidelines and Criteria (in the form of an annual report/statement of compliance to be mailed to the
Office of the County Judge on or before January 31% of each year of the tax abatement contract term).

9.02 Additionally, Owner shall furnish the following information or written statements to
County upon request during the term of this Agreement:

(a) Statement by Owner certifying the commencement and/or completion date of the
contemplated improvements described in Section VI herein and in the abatement
application;

(b) Statement by Owner of the number of permanent employees, contract employees and
construction employees actually employed at the facility location;

(c) Statement by Owner describing the status of construction of the contemplated
improvements, percentage of construction completed, construction schedule, and an
estimate of taxable value of constructed improvements on the date of the statement; or

(d) In lieu of the above statements, Owner may furnish documents and records verifying the
above requested information.

6
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(e) Any information, documents or records of any kind reasonably necessary for County's
evaluation of Owner's compliance with the terms and conditions of this agreement and
Brazoria County Guidelines and Criteria for Granting Tax Abatement, provided that
Owner shall not be required to furnish any information, documents or records which a
reasonably prudent Owner under the same or similar circumstances would consider to
be harmful to its business operations.

9.03 Owner's statements described above shall be verified by the project manager or other
appropriate official. Failure to provide any requested statement or information without just cause
within sixty (60) days of the request or presentation of any false or misleading statement may at the
County's option, be construed as a default by Owner under this Agreement and cause for immediate
termination of this Agreement and recapture of all previously abated taxes, if after written notice of
default, Owner has not cured such default prior to the expiration of thirty (30) days from such written
notice. The Cure Period provisions of Section VII are not applicable to a default and termination under
this paragraph.

9.04 Owner has a continuing obligation for a period of fourteen (14) years from the effective
commencement date of this Agreement (to December 31, 2037) to report to the County any plant
closure or permanent cessation of production at the abated facility and to furnish to County upon
request a written confirmation as to whether or not the abated improvements are in service as part of a
producing facility or, if applicable, a statement of the beginning and ending dates of production from
and/or the beginning and ending dates of operation of the abated facility improvements; or to provide
other similar information necessary to determine the actual or estimated productive life of the abated
improvements.

9.05 Pursuant to Section 5(a)(8) and Section 7(f) of the Brazoria County Guidelines and
Criteria for Granting Tax Abatement, Owner shall, upon expiration of this Agreement, begin annually
reporting the status of the abated improvements regarding active service and operation as part of a
facility operating in a producing capacity. Reporting will be for the same amount of years as the tax
abatement period and in the form of a “Productive Life Report” to be mailed to the Office of the
County Judge on or before January 31% of each year for seven (7) years following the expiration of the
tax abatement contract.

X. INDEMNIFICATION

10.01 Owner agrees to indemnify and hold harmless County, its Commissioners Court,
officers and employees from and against all obligations, claims, demands and causes of action of every
kind and character (including the amounts of judgments, penalties, interest, court costs and legal fees
incurred in defense of same) arising in favor of other governmental entities and agencies or third
parties (including employees of Owner) as a result of or arising out of, the covenants to be performed
by Owner under this Agreement, or any rights and provisions granted in this Agreement.

7



Tax Abatement Agreement Page 8
ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS TEXAS, INC.
BRAZORIA COUNTY REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 22-01

XI. ASSIGNMENT

11.01 Owner may assign this Agreement to a new owner of the same facility upon the
approval by resolution of the Commissioners Court of Brazoria County subject to the financial
capacity of the assignee and provided that all conditions and obligations in this Agreement are
guaranteed by the execution of a new contractual agreement with the County. No assignment or
transfer shall be approved if the parties to the existing agreement or the new owner are liable to County
or any affected jurisdiction for outstanding taxes or other obligations. Approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

XII. ANNUAL PAYMENT TO ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT FUND

12.01 In accordance with Section 2(h)(7) of the Brazoria County Guidelines and Criteria for
Granting Tax Abatement, Owner agrees to pay to County the annual contributions described in that
provision.

XIII. MODIFICATION OR TERMINATION

13.01 At any time before the expiration of this Agreement the parties may, upon mutual
consent, modify or terminate the original agreement. Such modification or termination shall be done
in accordance with Property Redevelopment and Tax Abatement Act, V.A.T.S., Chapter 312, Section
312.208 of Subchapter B.

XIV. AUTHORITY OF AGENT

14.01 By acceptance of this Agreement and/or any benefits conferred hereunder, Owner
represents that its undersigned agents have complete and unrestricted authority to enter into this
Agreement and to obligate and bind Owner to all of the terms, covenants and conditions contained in
this Agreement.

XV.NOTICE

15.01 Any notice required to be given under the provisions of this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be duly served when it shall have been deposited, enclosed in a wrapper with the
proper postage prepaid thereon, and duly registered or certified, return receipt requested, in a United
States Post Office, addressed to the County or Owner at the following addresses. If mailed, any notice
or communications shall be deemed to be received three days after the date of deposit in the United
States Mail. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, all notices shall be delivered to the
following addresses:
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To the Owner:
Ascend Performance Materials Texas, Inc.
6220 FM 2917 RD
Alvin, Texas 77511

Attn:  Greg Blanchard

To the County:
Commissioners Court, Brazoria County
Brazoria County Courthouse
111 East Locust Street
Angleton, Texas 77515
Attn: County Judge

Either party may designate a different address by giving the other party ten days written notice.

XVI. DATE
16.01 The County executes this Agreement by and through the County Judge acting pursuant

to Order of the Commissioners Court of Brazoria County, Texas, so authorizing, and the effective
execution date of this Agreement is the date of the countersignature of the County Judge.

[Signature Page Follows]
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This Agreement has been executed by the parties in multiple originals, each having full force
and effect.

BRAZORIA COUNTY ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS
TEXAS, INC.
/ % / )
By: By: /(/';, ‘,’@"l/l(}%épm_
L.M. “MATT” SEBESTA, JR. Kevin [RBeacto
COUNTY JUDGE C.EO

BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS

Date signed: _(Q1|2D/ Qo Date signed: JEff &3

10
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APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT IN
BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS

FILING INSTRUCTIONS:

This application should be filed at least NINETY (90) DAYS ptior to the beginning of construction or the
installation of equipment. This filing acknowledges familiarity and assumed conformance with “GUIDELINES
AND CRITERIA FOR GRANTING TAX ABATEMENT IN A REINVESTMENT ZONE IN
BRAZORIA COUNTY?” (Copy attached). This application will become part of any later agreement or contract
and knowingly false representations thereon will be grounds for the voiding of any latet agreement or contract.

ORIGINAL COPY OF THIS APPLICATION AND ATTACHMENTS SHOULD BE SUBMITTED
TO:

COUNTY JUDGE LM. “MATT” SEBESTA, JR.
BRAZORIA COUNTY COURTHOUSE
111 E. LOCUST SUITE 102A
ANGLETON, TEXAS 77515

PART I - APPLICANT INFORMATION

Company Name; Ascend Performance Materials Texas, Inc. Submittal Date; 7/28/22
Address/ City: 6220 FM 2917 Alvin, Texas 77511

Phone; (713) 315-5908

Name/Address/Phone of Company Contact on this Project : PRIMARY: Erio Gaislar, Economio Inoentive Services, LLC
4320 Lafaystte Street, Bellaire, Texas 77401, (713) 665-7200

COMPANY: Traci Carroll, 1010 Travis Street, Suite 900 Houston Texas 77002 (713) 315-5509
E-mail address of Company Contact: gelsler@edincentives.com

Type of Structute:  Corporation Partnership (7)) Proprietorship ()
Total number employed: 501 Cotporate Annual Sales Per Yeat: 518202030 @o21)
Annual Report Submitted:  Yes No (T} (see instructions)

PART II - PROJECT INFORMATION

Check type of facility to be abated:

Manufacturing dv)) Regional Distribution ()}
Regional Service )] Regional Entertainment Center ()
Research ) Other Basic Industty O

Proposed Facility Address and Legal Desctiption: Attach Exhibit “C”,
Attach a map showing site. Attach Exhibit “D”,

Abatement Term Requested:7 years Percentage Requested: 100
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Proposed facility located in the following taxing jutisdictions:

School District: Angleton ISD

Collcge District: Alvin Communily College

D rainage District: Brazoria Counly Conservation & Reclamation District#3 (C&RD#3)
Hospital District: Brazoria County Emergency Services District #3

City: (Liverpool ETJ and Industrial district)

Other Taxing Jurisdictions: Special Road and Bridge Fund

Desctibe Product ot
service to be providcd: Current production of acrylonitrile, and future recovery, purification and production of acetonitrile (ACN)

This application is fot a: New Plant () Expansion () Modernization

PART III - OTHER POSSIBLE LOCATIONS FOR PROJECT

If Company is considering another county in Texas to build/construct this project, identify all possible counties:

The project(s) would be built at the Brazoria County plant in order to preserve the long-term viability of this plant. This is a job retention project.

If Company is considering another state to build/construct this project, identify the city, county and state:

If any documentation has been provided to other potential Counties ot States, provide copies attached as Exhibit

“J”.

PART IV - PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Please attach a statement (1) fully explaining the project; (2) describing the site and existing improvements; (3)
desctribing all proposed improvements; and (4) providing a list of improvements and fixed equipment for which
abatement is requested. Attach Exhibit “E”.

If applicable, please desctibe, any additional property located outside of the proposed reinvestment zone that
would add to the overall value of the project.

PART V - ECONOMIC IMPACT INFORMATION

A. Estimated cost of improvements: $130-140 million

B. Permanent employment estimates:
If existing facility, the cutrent plant employment: 501

Estimated number of plant jobs retained: * ) Jobrerested: (0 ) it Savalines M1 e
Number of employees anticipated at statt-up: (500 ) within one year (500 )
C. Construction employment estimates:
Consttuction to statt: Month: Q3-4/Q1 Year: 202223
Construction to be completed: Month: Q3/Q4 Year: 2024
Number of construction jobs anticipated:
At start; ~100 Peak: ~400 Finish: ~100
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D. School District impact estimates: 0
Number of families transferred to area: 0
Number ot children added to ISDs : 0

E. City Impact estimates:
Volume of treated water required from city:
Volume of effluent water to be treated by city:

none
none

Please provide statement Addendum trelative to planned water and sewert treatment methods and

disposal of effluent if the facility is to be located outside city systems. If effluent is not treated by

municipal facilities, by Addendum, include an explanation of the manner of treatment and by whom.

Attach Exhibit “F”,

Has permitting been started

F. Estimated appraised value on site:

Valuation of existing propetty as of
January 1, preceding this abatement
application:

Estimated value of Personal Property

and improvements, hot subject to
abatement, excluding exempt Pollution
Control Equipment, upon completion

of the project subject to this application:

Estimated value of abated improvements at
the completion of construction:

Estimated value of Tangible Personal
Propetty, subject to abatement:

Estimated value of abated improvements
after abatement agreement expites:

Estimated value of abated Tangible Personal
Property, after abatement agreement expires:

Estimated value, upon completion of project,
of exempt pollution control equipment:

G. Minimum Production Life of Equipment:

Yes (y/])

No ()
LAND PERSONAL IMPROVEMENTS
PROPERTY
$14,700 $68,250 ;26,159,570

0 0

$ $
$93,000,000

: 7,000,000

s ~76,000,000

~5,100,000

*not

~32’000,000 improvements above
. S

25-43 years

H. Variance: Is a vatiance being sought under any provision of the “Guidelines”?
Yes () No (v If “Yes”, attach any supplementaty information requited. Attach Exhibit “G”.

I. Statement on planned efforts to use Brazoria County Vendors and Setvices: Please attach a statement
describing willingness and planned efforts to use qualified Brazoria County vendors and setvices whete applicable
in the construction and operation of the facility. (See Section 2 (h) (6) of the Guidelines and Ctiteria for Granting

Tax Abatement.). Attach Exhibit “H?.

June 2020

Page 5

included in



J. Tangible Personal Property Abatement Request:
property sought to be abated.
expires. Attach Exhibit “I”.

Attach 2 detailed list desctibing all tangible personal
Said list must include projected life, cost, and value after abatement agreement

PART VI~ DECLARATION

To the best of my knowledge, the above information is an accurate desctiption of project details.

Woark. Poarfon Mark Parker Tax Director

Company Official Signature

Printed Name & Title of Company Official

June 2020 Page 6
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KPMG LLP
811 Main Street
Houston, TX 77002

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Ascend Peformance Materials Holdings Inc.:

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ascend Peformance Materials Holdings Inc. and its
subsidiaries (the Company), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of income (loss) and comprehensive
income (loss), changes in stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to
be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

KPMG LLP, a@ejm@mlmmvﬁabﬂilv.vp.ﬂmnhlp,qm!lqmmbsﬁljrmxul.:1be: firm of
the KPMG glok gtionielindenanseol membeclims AR dyilbliated with
KPMG | Liroited; aofi Euplish ilimisest hy.op y guarantee.
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit,

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that
we identified during the audit.

KPMe LLP

Houston, Texas
April 26, 2022



ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS HOLDINGS INC.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(All currency in thousands)

Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents

Other receivables
Inventories, net
Other assets

Total current assets

$212,5694, respectively

$36,771, respectively
Other assets

Total assets

Current liabilities:
Long-term debt, current maturities
Debt-related party
Trade accounts payable
Commissions payable — related party
Operating lease liabilities
Accrued liabilities
Contract liabilities

Total current liabilities

Accrued pension benefits
Contract liabilities

Deferred taxes

Term Loan B, net

Credit facility

Cogeneration financing liability
Operating lease liabilities
Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ deficit:
Common stock
Paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Dividends declared and paid
Restricted stock
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Treasury stock

Total shareholders’ deficit

Assets 2021 2020
$ 42,918 51,255
Trade receivables, net of allowances of $581 and $846 respectively 463,206 239,957
69,548 24,366
449,753 366,909
35,997 32,432
1,061,422 714,919
Property, plant, and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $279,010 and
769,414 645,169
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net of accumulated amortization of $66,481 and
98,058 100,759
129,386 147,085
$ 2,058,280 1,607,922
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Deficit
$ 17,283 11,062
43,887 41,504
453,216 317,168
123,507 61,487
29,386 25,168
131,686 75,816
1,177 4,082
800,142 536,284
9,031 15,475
2,485 3,473
102,165 83,814
1,037,992 1,044,496
34,995 —
149,287 90,744
71,001 78,974
32,303 62,868
2,239,401 1,916,128
98 98
42,323 42,323
996,384 875,182
(1,174,385) (1,174,385)
2,856 2,856
(18,025) (23,908)
(30,372) (30,372)
(181,121) (308,206)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ deficit $ 2,058,280 1,607,922

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS HOLDINGS INC,
Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(All currency in thousands)

‘ 2021 2020
Net sales $ 3,162,302 1,811,693
Cost of goods sold 2,518,808 1,435,620
Gross profit 633,404 376,073
Depreciation and amortization 113,291 110,683
Selling, general, and administrative expense 185,005 117,511
Other operating expense 22,484 46,531
Operating income 312,624 101,348
Interest expense 51,987 126,654
Commissions expense - related party 122,199 82,579
Restructuring expense 4,034 6,408
Other income (15,666) (14,651)
Income (loss) from operations before income tax
expense (benefit) 150,070 (99,642)
Income tax expense (benefit) 28,868 (14,073)
Net income (loss) 121,202 (85,569)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Pension liability, net of tax of $1,235 and $790, respectively 5,883 (3,714)
Change in cash flow hedge — 369
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 5,883 (3,345)
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 127,085 (88,914)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



"SIUSWIS]E]S [BIDUBUY PSIEPIjOSU0D 0] sejou ButAuedwosoe sag

(Lzi'i8l) (zLe'08) (gz0o'sl) 958'z (G8e'vLL'L) $9£'966 €282y 86

£88'S — £88'c — — — — —_

zoz'izL — — - - [ATAI X AN — —
(90z'80¢) (zLe'09) (806'c2) 858z (g8e'vs1')) Z81'648 £TE'TY 86

SYE'S -— Sye'e - — - - —
(695'g8) - — —_ - (695'8) — —
(z86'520) (zg'08) (g52'42) 9882 (g8e'vLL'L) 152096 AN 86

Houap }203S8 S$S0] )203s pied sBujuies {ejides )}o03s
Slepjoysieys Kinseas) SAIsusyaiduwos pIjoLISSy pue paiejasp paulejay uprpied uowwos
[ejol i9y3o SpusplAIq

pajenunosy

(spuesnouy} ur Aouaung jjy)

0202 PUB LZ0Z ‘L€ J8quisdaq papus sies

youaQ sisployaleys ul sabueyy Jo SlUSWLEIS PRIERIOSUOD

"ONI SONICTOH STVRIALVYIN IONVINIOFN3d ANIOSY

LZ0Z ‘1€ 18quWa93(] 4O SE soueeg

swoouy snsuayaldwon Jaui0

awooul JaN

020z 'L Jaquieos(] jo se soueleq

pred spuspiag

SWoou] BAIsuUaYBIdWos JBYI0

550} 1oN

6102 ‘L€ 19qwasos(g JO SE souejeq



ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS HOLDINGS INC.
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(All currency in thousands)

2021 2020
Cash flows from operaling activities:
Net income (joss) $ 121,202 (85,569)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) {o net cash (used in) provided by operating aclivilies;
Deprecialion and amartization 113,291 110,683
Amortization of deferred financing costs 4,540 5,857
(Gain) loss on sales and retirement of assets, net 21 (501}
Deferred income lax expense (benefit) 19,734 (7,810}
Intarest rate swap — fair value of swap (29,564) 40,983
Other nonicash ilems (923) 1,013
Decrease ({increase) in:
Trade and other receivables (293,766) 35,337
Inventories (78,262) (7,246)
Other assets, excluding catalyst and deferred major maintenance (2,247) 8,318
Catalyst and deferred major maintenance (42,802) (71,480)
Right-of-use assels and operaling lease liabiiilies (1,058) (6,321)
Insurance proceeds 19,500 —_
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable — {rade, other payables, and accruals 180,086 32,870
Commissions payable 62,020 41,072
Long-term liabilities (4,408) 10,316
Pension liabllity (8,161) (4,408)
Coniract liabilities (3,893) (4,082)
Net cash provided by operating activities §7,312 99,042
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment (100,577) (108,885)
Purchase of software (1,298) (1,226)
Procesds from insurance claims 10,000 —
PoliBlend & Esseli Plast acquisition, net of cash received — (64,760)
Eurostar acquisition, net of cash received (9,8786) —
Net cash used in investing activities (101,751) (174,871}
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from Suzhou debt 7,225 8,612
Proceeds fromn credit facility 192,500 27,000
Proceeds from debt-related party 60,176 41,504
Proceeds from Poliblend noles 12,041 —
Payments on term loan (10,863) (11,000)
Payments on Suzhou debt (199) —_
Payments on credit facility {157,508) (27,000)
Payments of debt-related party (57,797} —
Payments on Poliblend notes (7,876) —
Debt issuance costs — {1,000)
Payment of finance lease liability (1,600) (435)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 36,102 37,681
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (8,337) (38,148)
Cash and cash equivalenls, beginning of year 51,255 89,403
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 42,918 51,255
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing aclivities:
Cash pald (refunds) during the period for income taxes $ 4,696 (26,210)
Cash paid during the period for Interest 63,381 73,702
Purchases of PP&E in accounts payable 8,210 —
Assets under conslruction 58,643 98,477
Cogeneration financing liability 57,580 90,744
Cogeneration retalnage 963 7,733
Right-of-use assets 24,904 137,730
Operating lease liabilities (24,904) 137,730

See accompanying nales io consolidated financial statements.



ASCEND PERFORNMANCE MATERIALS HOLDINGS INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
{All currency in thousands)

(1) Description of Business

Ascend Performance Materials Holdings Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively, the Company)
was formed on June 1, 2008, in connection with the purchase agreement executed by SK Titan

Holdings LLC (SK) to purchase 98% of the integrated nylon business segment from Solutia, Inc. (Solutia).
The remaining 2% of equity interest in the Company was retained by Solutia. On July 26, 2011, the
Company purchased the 2% minority interest and related outstanding shares from Solutia for
approximately $30,372. The acquired shares were retained by the Company to be reissued in future
periods and classified as treasury stock.

The Company cperates ten plants in the United States and foreign locations engaged in the manufacturing
of chemicals and nylon 6,6 fibers and plastics. The Company serves global markets and is one of the few
fully integrated nylon 6,6 producers. The Company's products are used in thousands of commercial and
industrial products including automotive applications, cable ties, carpet, tires, apparel, agricuitural products,
and personal care products. The Company’s raw materials are readily available, and the Company is not
dependent on a single supplier or only a few suppliers.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the valuation and useful lives of
fixed assets, allowances for doubtful accounts and sales returns, deferred tax assets and liabilities,
allowance for excess and obsolete inventory, the valuation of and accrual for employee benefit
obligations, income tax uncertainties, commission expense-related party, and other contingencies.

(b) Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 include the
accounts of Ascend Performance Materials Holdings Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation,

(c) Cash

Cash consists of balances held in the Company's bank accounts less outstanding payments. The
Company had no restricted cash as of December 31, 2021 or 2020.

7 (Continued)



(d)

(e)

)

(9)

ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS HOLDINGS INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(All currency in thousands)

Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company
maintains a customer-specific allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses inherent in its
accounts receivable portfolio. In establishing the required allowance, management considers
customers’ financial condition, the number of receivables in dispute, the current receivables aging, and
current payment patterns. The Company reviews its allowance for doubtful accounts on a quarterly
hasis.

Other Receivables

Other receivables are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. These consist
primarily of amounts due from customers with respect to their operations on the Company’s facilities,
amounts due with respect to federal and state income taxes, and value-added taxes.

Inventories

The costs of all inventories, both domestic and foreign, including supplies, are determined using the
moving average-cost method. Alf domestic inventories, excluding supplies, fuels, and precious metal
catalysts, are revalued to last-in, first-out (LIFO) cost for financial reporting using a dollar-value LIFO
method.

LIFO inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. inventories not carried at LIFO are stated at
the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Approximately 73% and 76% of all inventories are in the United States as of December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively and, as noted above, are recorded using a dollar-value LIFO method.

The Company records abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted
material (spoilage) as current period charges.

Revenue Recognition

The Company measures revenue based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer.
The Company recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control
over a product to a customer. Generally, this occurs at a point in time when the transfer of risk and title
transfers fo the customer. Costs incurred to obtain a contract will be expensed as incurred when the
amortization period is less than a year.

Shipping and handling cost associated with outbound freight before and after control over a product
has transferred to a customer is accounted for.as a fulfillment cost and is in included in cost of revenue.

Revenue is recognized net of sales taxes, value-added taxes, and other taxes.

8 (Continued)




ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS HOLDINGS INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(All currency in thousands)

(h) Property, Plant, and Equipment

()

)]

(k)

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at original cost. Plant and equipment under capital leases
are stated at the present value of minimum lease payments. Depreciation on plant and equipment is
calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated
useful life of buildings is 35 years, while the estimated useful lives of machinery and equipment range
from 10 to 20 years. Plant and equipment held under capital leases are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life of the asset.

Capitalized Software

Software are recorded in other assets and amortized on the straight-line method over estimated useful
lives ranging from three to five years. As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, software net of
accumulated amortization amounted to $4,637 and $5,274, respectively. Amortization expense for
software was $1,934 and $1,697 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Goodwill

On July 31, 2018, the Company acquired all issued and outstanding shares of Britannia Techno
Polymer B.V, (BTP), an engineering plastics compounder based in the Netherlands, for €8,500
($9,927) in cash. On September 1, 2020, the Company purchased all of the issued and outstanding
shares of Poliblend Spa (including its subsidiary Polyblend Deutschland and noncontrolling interest)
and Asset Plats GD Syl for €52,000 ($64,760) in cash. The Company identified and recorded assets
acquired, and liabilities assumed at their estimated fair values. Goodwill resulting from a business
combination is not subject to amortization. The Company tests such goodwill for impairment annually at
December 31 or more frequently if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more fikely
than not reduce the fair value below its carrying amount. Ne impairment indicators occurred during the
year ended December 31, 2021. As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, goodwill amounted to $18,768
and $18,749, respectively.

Turnaround Costs

The Company accounts for turnaround costs under the deferral method. Turnarounds are the
scheduled and required shutdowns of specific operating units in order to perform planned major
maintenance activities. The costs related to the significant overhaul and refurbishment activities include
maintenance materials, parts, and direct labor costs. The costs of the turnaround are deferred when
incurred at the time of the planned turnaround and amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the turnaround, which ranges from 3 to 15 years, Deferred turnaround costs are presented
as a component of other assets. The cash outflows related to these costs are included in operating
activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. During the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, turnaround costs were approximately $19,981 and $54,100, respectively.

Unplanned turnaround costs are expensed as incurred.

9 (Continued)
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ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS HOLDINGS INC,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(All currency in thousands)

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset-and-liability method. Deferred income taxes are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred
taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.
The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce its deferred tax assets to the amounts that are
more likely than not to be realized. The Company has considered the scheduled reversal of deferred
tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the
valuation allowance.

The Company recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than
not of being sustained. The Company records interest and penalties related to uncertain tax benefits as
a component of income tax expense.

(m) Long-Lived Assets

(n)

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant, and equipment, and software assets subject to amortization
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If circumstances require a long-lived asset or asset group
be tested for possible impairment, the Company first compares undiscounted cash flows expected to
be generated by that asset or asset group to its carrying value. If the carrying value of the long-lived
asset or asset group is not recoverable on an undiscounted cash flow basis, impairment is recognized
to the extent that the carrying value exceeds its fair value.

There were no 2021 impairment indicators identified.

Commitments and Contingencies

Liabilities for loss contingencies, including environmental remediation costs not within the scope of
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 450,
Contingencies Obligations, arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines, and penalties and other
sources are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the
assessment and/or remediation can be reasonably estimated.

Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are expensed as incurred.

Recoveries of environmental remediation costs from third parties that are probable of realization are
separately recorded as assets and are not offset against the related environmental liability.

Accruals for estimated losses from environmental remediation obligations generally are recognized no
later than completion of the remedial feasibility study. Such accruals are adjusted as further information
develops or circumstances change. Costs of expected future expenditures for environmental
remediation obligations are not discounted to their present value.

10 (Continued)
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ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS HOLDINGS INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(Al currency in thousands)

Self-insurance and Insurance Recoveries

The Company maintains self-insurance reserves to reflect its estimate of uninsured losses. Self-insured
losses are accrued based upon estimates of the aggregate liability for claims incurred using certain
actuarial assumptions followed in the insurance industry, the Company’s historical experience, and
certain case specific reserves as required, including estimated legal costs. The maximum extent of the
self-insurance provided by the Company is dependent upon a number of factors, including the facts
and circumstances of the individual cases and the terms and conditions of the commercial policies. The
Company has purchased insurance policies in order to reduce its exposure to workers’ compensation,
product, general, automobile, and property liability claims. This insurance has varying policy limits and
deductibles.

Insurance recoveries are estimated in consideration of expected losses, coverage limits, and policy
deductibles. When recovery from an insurance policy is considered probable, a receivable is recorded
to the extent of the recognized loss.

In November 2020, while undergoing maintenance, plants located at the Company’s Pensacola site
suffered a power outage due to the power provider's equipment failure. As a result, the Company
incurred third party repair costs. As of December 31, 2021, the Company has filed a $24,500 claim
against our insurance policy to recover the losses incurred (including a $5,000 out of pocket
deductible). This represents the final settlement amount approved by the insurance company, of which
$19,500 has been received during the year ended December 31, 2021,

In February 2021, the Company's Chocolate Bayou site in Alvin, Texas experienced damages due to
severe winter conditions. This resulted in significant downtime for the site. As of December 31, 2021,
the Company has filed a $50,000 claim against our insurance policy to recover the losses incurred
(including a $5,000 out of pocket deductible). Proceeds of $10,000 have been received from the
insurance company as of December 31, 2021. An additional $20,000 in proceeds have been agreed
with the insurance carriers as of December 31, 2021, but not collected as of year-end.

Foreign Currency Translation

The U.S. dollar has been used as the functional currency for all worldwide locations. All foreign
currency translations and translation adjustments are included in the operating results of the Company.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used principally in the management of interest rate exposures and
are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. if a derivative is designated as a fair
value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative and of the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk are recognized in earnings. If the financial instrument is designated as a cash flow hedge
or net investment hedge, the effective portions of changes in the fair value of the derivative are
included in other comprehensive income or loss in the consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income, and the cumulative effect is included in the shareholders’ deficit section of the
consolidated balance sheets. The cumulative changes in fair value are reclassified to the same line as
the hedged item in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income when the
hedged item affects earnings. The Company evaluate hedge effectiveness at inception and on an

11 (Continued)
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ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS HOLDINGS INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(All currency in thousands)

ongoing basis, and ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges and net
investment hedges are recognized in earnings following the date when ineffectiveness was identified.
Derivative instruments not designated as hedges are marked-to-market at the end of each accounting
period with the change included in earnings.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of two components, net income and other comprehensive income.
Other comprehensive income refers to revenue, expenses, and gains and losses that, under GAAP,
are recorded as an element of shareholders’ deficit but are excluded from earnings. Other
comprehensive income primarily consists of unrealized losses on retirement-related benefit plans,
including the income tax impact of those gains or losses, as well as the unrealized loss on a cash flow
hedge.

Pension and Other Postretirement Plans

The Company has a noncontributory defined-benefit pension plan, which was frozen in 2004. The
benefits are based on age, years of service, and the level of compensation before the plan was frozen.
The Company records annual amounts relating to the pension plan based on calculations that
incorporate various actuarial and other assumptions, including discount rates, mottality, assumed rates
of return on assets, and turnover rates, The Company reviews the assumptions on an annual basis and
makes modifications to the assumptions based on current rates and trends when it is appropriate to do
so. The effect of modifications to those assumptions is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income and amortized to net periodic cost over future periods. The Company believes that the
assumptions utilized in recording its obligations under its plan are reasonable based on its experience
and market conditions.

The FASB guidance on disclosure for pension plans requires disclosure of fair value measurements of
plan assets. To increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements, the

FASB guidance on fair value measurements established a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels as follows:

s Level 1— Observable inputs that reflect quoted market prices for identical assets and liabilities in
active markets

« Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability either directly or indirectly; the fair value of these investments are based on
evaluated prices that reflect observable market information, such as actual trade information of
similar securities, adjusted for observable differences

* Level 3— Unobservable inputs using data that is not corroborated by market data.

Research and Development and Advertising
Research and development and advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
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(u) Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 20186, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses, which will
change the impairment model for most financial assets and require additional disclosures. The
amended guidance requires financial assets that are measured at amortized cost be presented at the
net amount expected to be collected. The aliowance for credit losses is a valuation account that is
deducted from the amortized cost basis of financial assets. The amended guidance also requires us to
consider historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect
the collectability of the reported amount in estimating credit losses. The amended guidance becomes
effective for us commencing in the first quarter of 2023 and will be applied through a cumulative-effect
adjustment to the beginning retained earnings in the year of adoption. Early adoption is permitted.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, Simiplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes,
eliminating certain exceptions to the guidance in ASC Topic 740, Income Tax, related to the approach
for intraperiod tax allocation, the methodology for calculating income taxes in an interim period, and the
recognition of deferred tax liabilities for outside basis differences. The new guidance also simplifies
aspects of the accounting for franchise taxes and enacted changes in tax laws or rates and clarifies the
accounting for transactions that result in a step-up in the tax basis of goodwill. The guidance also
clarifies that single-member limited liability companies and similar disregarded entities that are not
subject to income tax are not required to recognize an allocation of consolidated income tax expense in
their separate financial statements, but they could elect to do so. For privately owned entities, the
standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, and interim periods within
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, Early adoption is permitted in interim or annual
periods. Entities that elect to early adopt must adopt all the amendments in the same period and apply
the guidance prospectively, except for certain amendments. The Company adopted this standard as of
January 1, 2022. It is not anticipated to have a material impact to the consolidated financial statement.

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform — Facilitation of the
Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting (Topic 848). This update provides an optional
expedient and exceptions for applying GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships, and other
transactions affected by reference rate reform if certain criteria are met. In response to the concerns
about structural risks of interbank offered rates (IBORs”) and, particularly, the risk of cessation of the
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR"), regulators in several jurisdictions around the world have
undertaken reference rate reform initiatives to identify alternative reference rates that are more
observable or transaction-based and less susceptible to manipulation. The ASU provides companies
with optional guidance to ease the potential accounting burden associated with transitioning away from
reference rates that are expected to be discontinued. In January 2021, the FASB issued ASU

No. 2021-01, which clarifies that certain provisions in Topic 848, if elected by an entity, apply to
derivative instruments that use an interest rate for margining, discounting, or contract price alignment
that is modified as a result of reference rate reform. The amendments in these ASUs are effective for
all entities as of March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022, We are still evaluating the new standard,
but it is not anticipated to have a material impact to the consolidated financiai statement.

All other new accounting standards and updates of existing standards issued through the date of this
filing were considered by management and did not relate to accounting policies and procedures
pertinent or material to the Company at this time.
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(v) Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases 842, as amended. The new guidance
establishes a right-of-use (‘ROU") model that requires a lessee to recognhize a ROU asset and lease
liability on the balance sheet for all leases with a term longer than 12 months. Leases will be classified
as finance or operating, with classification affecting the timing and classification of expense recognition.

The standard is effective from January 1, 2021 for privately owned entities. We early adopted the new
standard on January 1, 2020 using a modified retrospective transition approach applying to all leases
existing at the date of initial application. We elected the practical transition expedients that permitted us
not to reassess our prior conclusions about lease identification, lease classification, initial direct costs
and whether existing land easements that were not previously accounted for as leases under current
accounting standards are or contain a lease under the new standard, We did not elect the hindsight
practical transition expedient in determining the lease term of existing leases and in assessing
impairment of our ROU assets.

Upon adoption, we recorded ROU assets and lease liabilities of approximately $82,659 each, as of
January 1, 2020. The new standard does not have a material impact on our Consolidated Statements
of Income and Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Deficit,

The new standard also provides practical expedients for the Company's ongoing accounting. We have
elected the short-term lease recognition exemption for all leases that qualify. This means, for those
leases that qualify, we have not recognized ROU assets or lease liabilities. We have also elected the
practical expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components for all of our leases other than
leases of real estate.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-15, Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs
Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service Contract (Topic 350-40-Intangibles—
Goodwill and Other—Internal-Use Software), which we early adopted on January 1, 2020 using a
prospective transition approach. Only implementation costs incurred after the adoption date are
impacted. The standard if effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020,
and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021.

The amendments in this update align the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred in
a hosting arrangement that is a service contract with the requirements for capitalizing implementation
costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software (and hosting arrangements that include an
internal-use software license). The accounting for the service element of a hosting arrangement that is
a service contract is not affected by the amendments in this ASU.

The amendments in this update also require the Company to expense the capitalized implementation
costs of a hosting arrangement that is a setrvice contract over the term of the hosting arrangement. The
implementation costs incurred were not material.

In January 2017, the FASB issues ASU No. 2017-04, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 250),
which allow private companies an alternative accounting treatment for subsequently measuring
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goodwill. The Update simplifies how an entity is required to test goodwill for impairment by eliminating
Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. Step 2 measures a goodwill impairment loss by comparing
the implied fair value of a reporting unit's goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. Entities will
now record an impairment charge based on the excess of a reporting unit's carrying amount (including
goodwill) over its fair value derived from step 1 of the goodwill impairment test; limited to the total
amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. In November 2018, the FASB issued

ASU No. 20198-10 to amend the effective date of adoption. This update will be effective for the
Company in the first quarter of 2023.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-14, Compensation — Retirement Benefits — Defined
Benefit Plans, which requires entities to disclose the weighted average interest crediting rates for cash
balance plans and other plans with promised interest crediting rates, and an explanation of reasons for
significant gains and losses related to changes in the benefit obligation for the period. The amended
guidance also requires entities to remove disclosures on the amounts in accumulated other
comprehensive income expected to be recognized as components of net periodic benefit costs over the
next fiscal year. This update was effective for the Company in the first quarter of 2021.

(3) Inventory

2021 2020
Raw materials and supplies 8 123,518 89,573
Goods in process 227,502 145,510
Finished goods 247,505 150,162
Inventories at cost 538,525 385,245
LIFO reserne (148,772) (18,3386)
Total inventories, net of allowances $ 449,753 366,909

(4) Property, Plant, and Equipment

2021 2020
Land $ 49,272 49,272
Buildings 55,609 40,588
Plant and equipment 853,398 625,381
Construction in progress 89,621 141,988
Asset retirement obligations 524 524
Total property, plant, and equipment 1,048,424 857,753
lLess accumulated depreciation (279,010) (212,594)

Total propertty, plant, and equipment, net of

accumulated depreciation $ 769,414 645,159
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Depreciation and amortization

2021 2020
Property, plant, and equipment 3 50,900 39,766
Software 1,934 1,697
Catalysts 20,615 18,639
Turnaround costs 38,444 50,127
Intangible costs 1,398 454
$ 113,291 110,683

Catalysts are primarily precious metals that are used during the Company’s manufacturing process and are
classified as other current assets. Catalysts are amortized based on actual usage during the manufacturing
process.

Other Noncurrent Assets

2021 2020
Catalyst and deferred major maintenance 3 81,151 99,968
Goodwill 18,768 18,749
Software 4,637 5,273
Other intangible assets 23,414 22,600
Deposits 1,416 495
Total noncurrent assets 3 129,386 147,085

(6) Acquisitions

(a) Eurostar Acquisition

On December 23, 2020, the Company signed a securities purchase agreement with Olympiade and
Union Clinique Participation to acquire 100% of Eurostar Engineering Plastics, a French-based
compounder with a broad portfolio of flame-retardant engineered plastics and expertise in halogen-free
formulations, (the Acquisition) for a cash consideration of €11,000 of which €10,000 has been paid as
of December 31, 2021 and €1,000 to be paid by December 31, 2022.

This strategic Acquisition feeds into the Company’s long-term growth strategy to grow its global
manufacturing and distribution footprint and to provide our customers with a broader portfolio of high
performance, sustainable products to meet increasing demand.

The Acquisition was fully executed and closed on January 4, 2021 and has been accounted for as a
business combination, using the acquisition method. The following table represents the final allocation
of total purchase price to the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on the fair
values as of the acquisition date.
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At January 4, 2021

Fair value at

acquisition
date

Current assets $ 9,158

Property, plant and equipment 2,946
Intangibles assets (1):

Technology 1,100

Trade name 900

Deferred tax assets 1,665

ROU assets 4,024

Other long-term assets 174

Total assets acquired 19,967

Current liabilities 2,245

Operating lease liabilities 4,024

Noncurrent liabilities 579

Total liabilities assumed 6,848

Total purchase price 13,119

Less cash acquired (356)

Total purchase price, net of cash acquired $ 12,763

(1) All acquired intangible assets are subject to amortization with weighted average useful life of
approximately 18 years. The estimated useful lives of the definite lived assets range between 15
and 20 years. No goodwill was identified and recorded from the acquisition.

Transaction costs spent in fiscal year 2020 related to the acquisition are recorded in selling, general,
and administrative expenses. These costs are not material. The acquisition of Eurostar Engineering
Plastics was not material to the results of our operations.

(b} Polyblend Acquisition

On February 12, 2020, the Company signed a stock purchase agreement with Dotation Group to
acquire 100% polyblend Spa (including its subsidiary polyblend Deutschland which is 80% owned) and
Asset Plats GD Syl for a cash consideration of € 52,000 ($64,760) to be paid between April 1, 2021
and April 1, 2024. The 20% of non-controlling interest in polyblend Deutschland was acquired from a
third-party for € 250 ($313). The acquisition consists of a manufacturing facility in Mozzetta, ltaly,
including the masterbatch portfolio of Asset Plats GD, the engineering plastics portfolio of polyblend; as
well as inventory (mostly finished goods and raw materials) and other net working capital,
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This strategic acquisition follows the Company’s long-term growth strategy to grow its European
manufacturing and distribution footprint and to provide our customers with a broader portfolio of
high-performance, sustainable products to meet increasing demand.

The acquisition closed on September 1, 2020.

The acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition method, the following table represents the
final allocation of total purchase price to the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
based on the fair values as of the acquisition date. The excess of the purchase price over the
estimated fair value of net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill.

At September 1, 2020
Fair value at

acquisition
date
Current assets $ 40,033
Property, plant and equipment 8,361
Intangibles assets (1)

Customer relationships 12,000
Technology 9,000
Non-camplete 125
Goodwill 14,052
Other long-term assets 1,219
Total assets acquired 84,790

Current lighilities 14,663
Accrued pension liabilities 1,106
Other long-term liabilities 799
Total liabilities assumed 16,568

Total purchase price 68,222
Less cash acquired (3,462)
Total purchase price, net of cash acquired $ 64,760

(1) All acquired intangibles assets, other than goodwill, are subject to amortization. The estimated
useful lives are 17 years on customer relationships, 19 years on technology, and 3 years for
non-compete agreements.

Goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes over an amortization period of
15 years.
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Transaction costs spent in fiscal year 2020 related to the acquisition are recorded in selling, general,
and administrative expenses. These costs are not material. The acquisition of polyblend Spa and Asset
Plats GD Syl was not material to the results of our operations.

(c) Suzhou Asset Acquisition

In June 2020, the Company entered into two asset purchase agreements to purchase a land use right,
production facility and related machinery and equipment located in Changshu, China for approximately
$11,000. This acquisition expanded the Company's manufacturing capabilities and shortened the
supply chains with respect to our customers' needs in Asia.

The acquisition closed in September 2020.

Leases

The majority of the Companies leases are operating leases. Our leases include real estate, vehicles,
marine vessels/barges, railcars, chassis, forklifts, shop equipment and tools, factory machinery, office
equipment (including IT equipment), storage tanks, and nitrogen/hydrogen facilities. The Company elects
the practical expedient, where applicable, to not separate lease from non-lease components for all classes
of underlying assets excluding real estate, which is expected to simplify the identification and tracking of
payment streams.

At inception of a contract, we determine if the contract contains a lease. When a lease is identified, we
recognize a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability based on the present value of the lease
payments over the lease term discounted using our incremental borrowing rate, unless an implicit rate is
readily determinable. Lease payments include fixed and variable lease components. Variable components
generally represent a service that the lessee is paying for within the terms of the contract and that the
lessor is providing in addition to the lease component (the use of identified property, plant or equipment).
Options to extend or terminate the lease are reflected in the lease payments and lease term when it is
reasonably certain that we will exercise those options. Ascend elects to implement an accounting policy for
each of its underlying asset classes, with terms of 12 months or less, whereby these transactions will be
recognized as "short term” and therefore not recognized on the balance sheet. Instead, these transactions
will be expensed on a straight-fine basis as incurred.
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The components of lease cost for operating and finance leases are as follows:

Years ended December 31

Lease cost 2021 2020

Operating lease cost $ 37,622 38,856
Finance lease cost

Amortization of right-of-use assets 1,590 1,528

interest on lease liabilities 168 32

Total finance lease cost 1,758 1,560

Short-term lease cost 2,777 7,159

Variable lease cost 452 8

Sublease income —_ —

Total lease cost $ 42,609 47,583

The following table provides supplemental cash flow information related to leases:

Years ended December 31

Other lease information 2021 2020
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease
liabilities:
Operating cash flows for operating leases $ 37,925 38,712
Operating cash flows for finance leases 164 77
Financing cash flows for finance leases 1,600 434
The following table summarizes the lease term and discount rate at December 31, 2021.
Year ended
December 31,
Lease term and discount rate 2021
Weighted awerage remaining lease term:
Operating leases (in years) 4.0
Finance leases (in years) 3.7
Weighted average discount rate;
Operating leases 6.0 %
Finance leases 3.5
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The following table provides the maturities of lease liabilities at December 31, 2021:

Operating Finance

Maturities of lease liabilities : leases leases
2022 $ 34,641 1,622
2023 28,840 1,147
2024 20,657 895
2025 16,837 794
2026 8,277 206
Thereafter 5,951 89
Total future undiscounted lease payments 113,203 4,753
Less imputed interest (12,816) (299)
Total present value of lease liabilities $ 100,387 4,454

Revenue Recognition

The Company earns and recognizes revenue from the manufacture, sale, and delivery of world-class
plastics, fibers, and chemicals. Our customer base is mostly made up of entities that operate in the
automotive, electrical, consumer, and industrial sectors and are located domestically as well as
internationally in the Europe and Asia regions. Approximately 61% of our contract terms are based on a
pricing formula that is typically tied to a market index of raw materials. The remaining is based on
agreed-upon spot prices,

The nature of the Company’s business gives rise to variable considerations, including early payment
discounts, rebates and sales promotions, allowances, and bonuses, that generally decrease the transaction
price, which reduces revenue. These variable amounts are credited to the customer based on achieving
certain levels of sales activity, product returns, or price concessions. Variable consideration also includes
surcharges to some of our customers for purchase short falls. These charges increase the transaction
price, which increase revenue. The Company has determined that the annual impact of variable
considerations is not significant to the statement of operations and financial position.

Our formula-based contracts are highly susceptible to factors outside the Company's influence, including
pricing volatility in the raw material market. In addition, we do not have the history of predicting accurately
the future pricing of the raw materials that go into the determination of the contract transaction price. As
such, it is probable that a reversal of revenue will occur when the uncertainty is subsequently resolved. As
such, variable consideration due to the fluctuations in market indices is constrained until such uncertainty is
resolved, which is typically monthly.

For the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company did not have any significant financing
components as payments are received at or shortly after the point of sale, The Company also did not incur
any costs to obtain a contract or to fulfill our performance obligations to our customers.
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As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Company did not capitalize any contract assets as all revenue is
billed and presented as trade receivables. Contract liabilities include billings in excess of revenue
recognized.
(9) Related Parties
During 2021 and 2020, the Company had certain related-party transactions with SK, the Company’s
majority shareholder,
(a} Income Statement
Related-party transactions impacting the income statement during 2021 and 2020 were as follows
(amounts included in selling, general, and administrative expenses):

Years ended December 31
2021 2020

Management fees $ 3,000 3,000

(b) APM DISC

On October 22, 2010, the Company's shareholders established a new subsidiary, APM DISC,
Holdings, LLC (APM DISC Holdings), and APM DISC Holdings established a new subsidiary, APM
DISC, Inc. (APM DISC), which made the election for APM DISC to be treated as an Interest Charge
Domestic International Sales Corporation (IC-DISC) under the Internal Revenue Code and the
regulations promulgated thereunder. The structure allows exporters (the Gompany) to minimize

U.S. corporate taxation on a portion of income from export sales by allowing a deductible commission
to be paid from the exporting corporation to the IC-DISC entity. The commission income received by
the IC-DISC entity is not subject to U.S. corporate income tax, but the commission is taxable to the
individual shareholders of the IC-DISC at the enacted qualified dividend rate. The exporter

(the Company) is allowed to deduct the commission amount paid to the |C-DISC entity from its ordinary
income. The Company had commissions payable to APM DISC of approximately $123,507 and
$61,487 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2020, the Company had approximately $122,199 and $82,579, respectively, of commission

expense.
{c) Debt
Related-party debt as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 consists of the following:
2021 2020
APM DISC $ 43,887 41,504
Total debt — related party $ 43,887 41,504
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In February 2021, the Company repaid $40,000 in commissions to APM DISC Holdings and APM DISC
Holdings loaned back $40,000 in the form of a loan payable on demand with a maturity date of
February 28, 2026 and an interest rate of 0.12%. In December 2021, the Company repaid $20,179 in
commissions to APM DISC Holdings and loaned back $20,179 in the form of a loan payable on
demand with a maturity date of December 8, 2026 and an interest rate of 0.33%. On December 11,
2020, the Company repaid $41,504 in commissions to APM DISC Holdings and loaned back $41,504
on the same date, in the form of a loan payable on demand with a maturity date of December 31, 2025
and an interest rate of 0.15%. The loan payables have an interest rate equal to the lesser of (a) the
short term Applicable federal rate, compounded quarterly, as published by the United States Internal
Revenue Service at date of issuance and (b) the maximum non-usurious rate of interest per annum
permitted by applicable law. During the year ended December 31, 2021, The Company repaid $57,797
of the loan. Each of the promissory notes underlying these notes payable do not provide for additional
borrowing capacity.

(10) Debt — External Parties
Long-term debt as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 consist of the following:

(a) Term Loan B

On August 27, 2019, the Company refinanced the 2016 Term Loan B from a principal amount of
$500,000 to $1,100,000 (the 2019 Term Loan B). The transaction was treated as a modification of the
terms of the original loan. The outstanding balance at the date of refinancing was $481,809. The
maturity of the new loan is August 2026, payable in quarterly instaliments of $2,750 through June 30,
2028, with a final installment of $1,025,750 due August 2026 before any consideration of excess cash
flow payments. When applicable, excess cash flow payments are due April 30 of each year effective
2021 through 2025. These payments will decrease the final instaliment due August 2026.

The Loan bears interest at a rate per annum equal to, at our option, either (a) a base rate or (b) a
London Interbank Offered rate (LIBOR), with a minimum amount of 1.00%, plus a margin of 5.25% per
annum, which is 0.25% lower than the Original 2016 Term Loan. The interest rate at the close of
business on December 31, 2021 and 2020 were 5.5% and 6.25%, respectively. The December 31,
2021 and 2020 rates were based on the LIBOR.

The Loan is structured as a loan syndicated with various institutional lenders only.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had $26,533 in debt discount and deferred debt issuance
costs that are amortized over the life of the Loan using the effective interest method. Amortization of
$5,721 and $5,537 was recognized in 2021 and 2020, respectively, and is presented as a part of
interest expense in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

The loan has an interest rate cap in place subject to annual renewal and is presented as part of interest
expense in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

Under the terms of the Loan, we are subject to certain financial covenants, which include the
maintenance of a maximum consolidated net leverage ratio prior to and after declaring dividends and a
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restriction on the amount of capital expenditures. As of December 31, 2021, the Company was in
compliance with the covenants.

Credit Facility

On August 27, 2019, in conjunction with the Term Loan B refinance, the Company refinanced the credit
facility to the third amended and restated credit agreement. The transaction was treated as a
modification of the terms of the old credit facility. The line of credit was increased by $25,000 to
$400,000, of which $30,000 may be used to support letters of credit issued on behalf of the Company.
The refinancing also extended the maturity of the agreement from December 2021 to August 2024,

As of December 31, 2020, there was $0 outstanding on the credit facility and outstanding letters of
credit totaling $6,942. As of December 31, 2021, there was $34,995 outstanding on the credit facility
and outstanding letters of credit totaling $10,630. Average interest rates at the close of business on
December 31, 2021 and 2020 were 3.5% and 3.75% for borrowing, average guarantee fees of 0%, and
interest charges of 1.25% on letters of credit, respectively.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has $1,851 in deferred debt issue costs that will be amortized
over the life of the credit facility. Amortization of $319 was recognized in both 2021 and 2020 and is
presented as a part of interest expense in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income. Under the terms of our credit facility, we are subject to certain financial covenants, which
include the maintenance of a fixed coverage ratio in conjunction with minimum excess availability in the
credit facility. As of December 31, 2021, the Company was in compliance with the covenants under the
credit facility.

Suzhou Debt

On September 4, 2020, the Company's foreign subsidiary located in Suzhou, China entered into a
Chinese RMB 99,000 ($15,595) five-year Term Loan with a local financial institution. The purpose of
the loan was to partially finance an RMB 210,000 ($32,185) project to manufacture modified plastics;
including without limitation to finance expenditures on the procurement of fixed assets and
repair/fimprove fixed assets. The loan is to be repaid from cash generated from the operations of the
foreign subsidiary.

Interest on the loan is based on a one-year loan market quoted interest rate (the Loan Prime Rate)
published by the National Interbank Funding Center on the previous working day of the interest
commencement date; minus a 0.15% fixed rate. The Loan Prime Rate is to be adjusted every

12 months on the previous working day of the interest rate adjustment date. The average interest rate
for borrowings at the close of business on December 31, 2021 and 2020 was 3.7%. The rate of default
is at most 1560% of the loan interest. Interest is paid on a monthly basis.

The term loan agreement allows a drawdown period between 9/4/2020 — 12/31/2022 in accordance to
actual needs of the project. The loan is collaterized by a bank account balance equivalent to 40% of the
loan balance.
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As of December 31, 2021, there was RMB 85,659 ($13,495) drawn and outstanding on the
RMB 99,000 ($15,695) credit facility. In September 2021, the Company made a repayment of RMB 500
($79) to the credit facility. Repayment of the remaining facility is as follows:

RMB (‘000s)
Years:

2022 6,200
2023 8,380
2024 21,770
2025 62,150
2026 —_—
Thereafter —
Total 98,500

Under the terms of the loan, we are subject to certain obligations which the Company was in
compliance with as of the date of financials statement issuance.

(11} Cogeneration Project Financing

Ascend entered into a Master Lease Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Citizens Asset Finance (“CAF")
effective March 13, 2020. The Agreement terms include a commitment for cogeneration facility financing in
the amount of up to $165,000. Ascend is deemed to have control of the asset during the construction
period. Approximately $149,287 and $90,744 in construction costs have been capitalized as property,
plant, and equipment as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The lease term extends from the date of the Agreement through July 2028, with an option to renew for or
purchase the asset at expiration of the lease. The lease is expected to commence July 2022, The interest
rate on the financing is based on LIBOR (minimum floating rate of 0.25%), plus a fixed rate of 4% per
annum. Repayment starts with the commencement at a rate of 2.9167% of the aggregate amount of all
advances as of the commencement date, paid quarterly.

Upon expiration of the lease term, the Company can purchase the assets for a price equal to 30% of the
aggregate amount of all advances plus all taxes and charges upon sale and all other amounts accrued and
unpaid under the lease. Citizens Asset Finance (as Agent) shall convey to the Company (as Lessee) all
right, title and interest in the project.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(All currency in thousands)

(12) Income Taxes
(a) Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to income from continuing operations consists of the

following:
Years ended December 31
2021 2020
Current:
Federal $ 34 (10,449)
State 458 (38)
Foreign 9,727 4,224
10,219 (6,263)
Deferred:
Federal 16,420 (9,448)
State 1,965 1,638
Foreign 264 —
18,649 (7,810)
Total $ 28,868 (14,073)

(b) Tax Rate Reconciliation

Income tax expense (benefit) differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal
statutory income tax rate of 21% to income before income taxes as a result of the following:

Years ended December 31

2021 2020

Income tax at federal statutory rate $ 31,416 (20,807)
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefits 2,326 2,073
Foreign taxes (127) (185)
Research and dewelopment credits (7,357) (1,642)
Remeasurement of deferred taxes 547 611)
Non-deductible expenses 5,439 4,955
Other (3,376) 1,844

Total $ 28,868 (14,073)
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(c) Deferred Taxes

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(All currency in thousands)

ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS HOLDINGS INC.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are presented below:

2021 2020
Deferred tax assets;
Accrued liabilities $ 4,109 4,904
Allowance for doubtful accounts 54 120
Accrued pension benefits 1,001 2,668
Foreign tax credits 7,086 9,115
Research and development credits 4,680 2,557
Combined heat and power credit 5,208 —
Net operating loss carryforward 37,779 23,453
ROU lease assets 22,507 22,339
Other 16,654 15,784
Total gross deferred tax assets 99,078 80,940
Less valuation allowance (10,440) (11,481)
Net deferred tax assets 88,638 69,459
Deferred tax liabilities:
Inventories 8,814 10,358
Property, plant, and equipment 149,790 114,072
Deferred catalyst 7,614 5,324
Operating lease liability 22,443 22,275
Other 2,142 1,244
Total gross deferred tax liabilities 190,803 153,273
Net deferred tax liability $ 102,165 83,814

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred taxes will not be realized. The ultimate realization of
deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in
which those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal
of deferred tax liabilities (including the impact of available carryforward periods), projected future
taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making the assessment. Management does not believe
we will be able to utilize our foreign tax credits due to limitations and have recorded a valuation
allowance against the credits.

We estimate our income tax provision in each of the jurisdictions where we operate, including
estimating exposures related to uncertain tax positions. We must also make judgments regarding the
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(All currency in thousands)

ability to realize our deferred tax assets. We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax
assets to the amount that we believe is more likely than not to be realized. Our valuation allowance as
of December 31, 2021 of $10,440 is attributed to foreign tax credit carryforwards of $7,086 and state
net operating losses of $3,354. Our valuation allowance as of December 31, 2020 of $11,481 is
attributed entirely to foreign tax credit carryforwards of $9,115 and state net operating losses of $2,366.

Differences in our future operating results as compared to the estimates utilized in the determination of
the valuation allowances could result in adjustments in valuation aliowances in future periods. For
example, implementation of tax strategies could increase the ability to utilize foreign tax credits.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards for federal and state
income tax purposes of $127,674 and $195,430, respectively. As of December 31, 2020, the Company
has net operating loss carryforwards for federal and state income tax purposes of $83,000 and
$167,000, respectively. The state net operating losses will expire between 2024 and 2040. Based upon
projections of future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible,
management believes it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits of these
deductible differences, net of the valuation allowance. The amount of the deferred tax asset considered
realizable, however, could be reduced in the future if estimates of future taxable income during the
carryforward period are reduced.

On May 11, 2019 Ascend implemented the Ascend EU restructuring, whereby APM European Ltd
became the designated distributor for the Ascend EU region and APM Belgium became a support
services company. The Company has an unrecognized tax benefit of $2,605 and $2,000 as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, related to this restructuring.

{13) Shareholders’ Equity

No dividends were declared or paid by the Company for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

(14) Pension Benefits
The Company has a noncontributory defined-benefit pension plan, which was frozen in 2004,

The investment policy of the plan reflects the nature of the plan’s funding obligations. The assets are
invested to provide the opportunity for both income and growth of principal. This objective is pursued as a
goal designed to provide required benefits for participants without undue risk.
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The following table sets forth the plan’s benefit obligations, the fair value of plan assets, and funded status
at December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Pension benefits

2021 2020
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 136,626 137,627
Senice cost 395 679
Interest cost 3,319 3,806
Actuarial loss (gain) (7,415) 5,186
Settlement loss 2,188 1,975
Gross benefits paid (3,900) (3,118)
Settlement payments (13,024) (9,087)
Administrative expenses (315) (442)
Benefit obligation, end of year $ 117,874 136,628
Weighted average assumption used to determine
Benefit obligation at end of year:
Discount rate 2.8% 2.4 %
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $ 122,087 117,378
Actual return on plan assets 5,197 14,413
Employer contribution —_ 2,943
Gross benefits paid (3,900) (3,118)
Settlement payments (13,024) (9,087)
Administrative expenses (315) (442)
Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ 110,045 122,087
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(All currency in thousands)

(a) Pension Plan Assets

The asset allocation at the end of 2020 and the target allocation for 2021, by asset category, are as

follows:

Asset category:
U.S. equity securities
Debt securities
International equities

Total

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Sendce cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of actuarial loss
Settlement loss

Net periodic benefit cost

Weighted average assumptions used to determine net
periadic cost:
Discount rate (including settlement)
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase

Target allocation

2021 2020
18 % 18 %
70 69
12 13
100 % 100 %

Pension benefits

2021 2020
395 679
3,319 3,806
(6,290) (6,328)
1,398 2,071
2,188 1,975
1,010 2,203
2.4 % 3.0%
5.6 5.6
N/A N/A

Each fiscal year, we consider several factors when determining the appropriate expected return on
assets assumption. While the portfolio composition and economic forecast are reviewed, we
additionally will consider the appropriate benchmarks, historical trends, and comparisons to peer

companies.
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ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS HOLDINGS INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(All currency in thousands)

(b) Funded Status

The funded status at the end of the year and the related amounts recognized in the consolidated
statements of financial position are as follows:

Pension benefits

2021 2020
Funded status, end of year:
Fair value of plan assets $ 110,045 122,087
Benefit obligations (117,874) (136,626)
Funded status $ (7,829) (14,539)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of
financial position consist of:
Noncurrent liability $ 7,829 14,539
7,829 14,539
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income consist of:
Net actuarial loss 3 18,571 26,291
$ 18,571 26,291

The Company expects to contribute $0 to its pension plan in 2022.

The benefits expected to be paid from the pension plan in each year from 2022 to 2031 are as follows:

Benefits
payments
Yeai(s) ending December 31:
2022 $ 12,351
2023 10,652
2024 9,766
2025 9,628
2026 8,811
2027 and thereafter 32,180
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Pension plan assets fair value measurements
at December 31, 2021

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Equities and pooled

equity funds $ 33,185 1,299 31,886 —
Bonds and pooled bonds

funds 76,293 — 76,293 —
Cash and cash

equivalent funds 567 — 567 —
Group annuity contract —— — — —
Pending settlements — —_ — —_

Total $ 110,045 1,299 108,746 —_—

Pension plan assets fair value measurements
at December 31, 2020

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Equities and pooled

equity funds $ 37,448 1,508 35,940 —_
Bonds and pooled bonds

funds 83,316 — 83,316 —
Cash and cash

equivalent funds 217 — 217 —_—
Group annuity contract 1,106 — 1,106 —
Pending settlements — — — —

Total $ 122,087 1,608 120,579 —

Employee Saving Plan

Substantially, all of U.S. employees are eligible to participate in the Ascend Performance Materials Savings
and Investment Plans (SIP), a 401(k) plan with matching contributions being invested in the same manner
as participants’ personal SIP contributions, the Company matched employee contributions at 100% of the
first 6%, and 50% of next 2% of a participant’s qualified contributions for the year ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. In
the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect
on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations, or liquidity.
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On January 11, 2018, the Company filed a lawsuit against Design Concepts regarding an expander wheel
malfunction which caused damage to @ NOx Turbocompressor. The Company received $5,925 as full and
final settlement on the lawsuit in March 2020,

The Company's facilities could be subject to potential environmental liabilities primarily relating to
contamination caused by former operations at those facilities. Some environmental laws could impose on
the Company the entire costs of cleanup regardiess of fault or legality of the original disposal. in some
cases, the government entity with jurisdiction could seek an assessment of damage to the natural
resources caused by contamination from those sites. The Company had no material operating
expenditures or accruals for environmental fines, penalties, government-imposed remedial, or corrective
actions during the year ended December 31, 2021 or 2020.

Restructuring Charges

In 2020, the Company initiated a process to re-align business processes and personnel to achieve our
long-term growth strategies. Amounts included in restructuring expense consist of third-party consulting
and employee severance costs.

Interest Rate Swap

The Company uses variable-rate London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) debt to finance its operations.
The debt obligations expose the Company to variability in interest payments due to changes in interest
rates. Management believes that it is prudent to limit the variability of a portion of its interest payments. To
meet this objective, in December 2019 the Company entered a LIBOR-based interest rate swap agreement
to manage fluctuations in cash flows resuiting from changes in the benchmark interest rate of LIBOR. The
swap changes the variable-rate cash flow exposure of debt obligations to fixed cash flows. Under the terms
of the interest rate swap, the Company receives LIBOR-based variable interest rate payments and makes
fixed interest rate payments, thereby creating the equivalent of fixed-rate debt for the notional amount of its
hedged debt. As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the notional amount of debt subject to the interest rate
swap agreement was $750,000.

Changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps designated as hedging instruments that effectively offset
the variability of cash flows associated with variable-rate, long-term debt obligations (or changes in
settlement value where the Company follows the simplified hedge accounting approach) are reported in
accumulated other comprehensive income. The amounts are subsequently reclassified into interest
expense as a yield adjustment of the hedged interest payments in the same period in which the related
interest affects earnings.

As of December 31, 2019, the swap was designated as a hedge and an unrealized loss of $2,114 was
recognized in AOCI, Effective January 1, 2020, the hedge was de-designated due to the hedge relationship
no longer being considered effective. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2021, realized and
unrealized (gains) and losses, recorded in earnings from the change in the fair value of swap were $11,913
and ($29,564), respectively. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2020, realized and unrealized
losses, recorded in earnings from the change in the fair value of swap were $5,895 and 40,993,
respectively,
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Information regarding the fair value of the interest rate swap on a gross basis is as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Fair value of derivative U.S. dollar Fair value of derivative U.S. dollar
Balance sheet caption Asset Liability notional Asset Liability notional
{In thousands}
Accrued liabilities $ — 9,355 750,000 —_— 14,745 750,000
Cther long-term liabilities — 4,557 —_— 28,730
Total liabllity  $ — 13,912 —_— 43,475

COVID-19 Event

In March 2020, the World Health Organization recognized the novel strain of coronavirus, COVID-19, as a
pandemic. This coronavirus outbreak has severely restricted the level of economic activity around the
world. In response to this coronavirus outbreak, the governments of many countries, states, cities and other
geographic regions have taken preventative or protective actions, such as imposing restrictions on travel
and business operations and advising or requiring individuals to limit or forego their time outside of their
homes. Temporary closures of businesses have been ordered and numerous other businesses have
temporarily closed voluntarily. In light of the uncertainty as to the severity and duration of the pandemic, the
future impact on the Company's revenues, profitability and financial position cannot be reasonably
estimated at this time.

Subsequent Events
(a) China Production Facility Investment

In January 2022, the Company signed an investment agreement of $145,000 to construct a new
hexamethylene diamine and specialty chemicals plant in Lianyungang, China in the Xuwei New Area
Park. The new plant will be the Company's first chemical production facility and the largest investment
the company has made outside of the United States. Construction is scheduled to begin later in 2022
with a plant startup targeted for the second half of 2023.

(b) Suzhou Debt

On January 24, 2022, the company entered into a supplementary agreement related to its Term Loan
to increase the total facility from RMB 99,000 ta RMB 133,000.

(c) Formulated Polymers Acquisition

In March 2022, the Company signed an agreement to acquire the compounding division of Formulated
Polymers Limited for INR 1,990,000, Formulated Polymers Limited is a leading engineered materials
manufacturer in Chennai, India. The deal includes a world-scale manufacturing facility in Chennai as
well as warehouses throughout India. The acquisition is anticipated to close in May 2022.

34 (Continued)



ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS HOLDINGS INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(All currency in thousands)

(d) DM Color Acquisition

On April 1, 2022, the Company completed the $7,000 purchase of a compounding facility in San Jose
Iturbide, Mexico, that included the assets of DM Color Mexicana, a joint venture between Dainichiseika
and Mitsubishi Corp.

The Company has evaluated significant events and transactions that have occurred from the consolidated
statements of financial position date through April 26, 2022 and has determined that there were no other
events or transactions other than those disclosed in this report that would require recognition or disclosure
in the Company's consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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EXHIBIT B - BRAZORIA COUNTY TAX ABATEMENT APPLICATION
ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS TEXS, INC.

CERTIFICATION OF APPRAISED VALUE OF
PROPERTIES AS OF JANUARY 1, 2022

TO: BRAZORIA COUNTY
FROM: BRAZORIA COUNTY APPRAISAL

DISTRICT DATE: .i Zc-/ 20 2

The Brazoria County Appraisal District hereby certifies that the following apptaised values as of
January 1, 2022, for Ascend Performance Materials Texas, Inc., attached hereto are listed in the records of Brazoria
County Appraisal District and indicated by the following account numbers:

See attached files

Certified this 2(6 day of J U"la\'_/ , 20 A~

CHIEF APPRAISER
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Appraisal Summary
Appraisal Year: 2022

Chocolate Bayou Plant ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERI
FM Road 2917 ASCEND PERFORMANCE Agent: Jeff Moore Appralser: Kirk Slaughter
Alvin, TX 77612 MATERIALS LLC 5
4 ATTN: PROPERTY TAX Agent Phone: (512) 691-2474 Date Inspected: 4/5/2022
DEPARTMENT
POBOX 711
ALVIN, TX 775120711
Process Units
RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions Retirements Market Value Component Accoupt
AN 2 Unit 81,677,390 43 478772 81,347 3,087,230 0107-0003-000
AN 3 Unit 55,663,320 40 31.3833  43.72% 0.3000 6,048,780 0107-0003-000
AN 7 Unit 215,062,170 25 20.6720  29.06% 0.3000 2,409,369 11,107,440 0107-0003-000
Formalin Unit 12,343,920 40  40.2813 0.3000 864,900 0107-0003-000
IDA Unit 69,304,450 26 32.7407 1,600,000 6,034,330 0107-0003-000
NTA Unit 35,896,640 40 42.8590 ) 0.3000 ] 1,987,910 0107-0003-000
Total Process Units 459,847,890 2,409,369 1,681,347 28,130,590
Taxable Value: 28,130,590
Utilities
RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions  Retirements Market Value Component Account
Alr Systems 7,272,540 45  49.1305 229,420 0107-0003-000
AN-7 Water Treatment & Ulilities 59,290,040 26 18.8216  39.42% 0.3000 5,854,720 0107-0003-000
(W/16.5% Eco)
Cooling Towers (w/16.5% Eco) 9,289,250 45 155837  88.41% 0.3000 2,057,260 0107-0003-000
Electrical System (w/16.5% Eco) 17,418,010 50 422095  38.58% 0.3000 1,683,330 0107-0003-000
Fuel Gas System 640,550 50 56.1167 14,880 0107-0003-000
Steam Distribution 16,108,680 50  56.0922 374,490 0107-0003-000
Sleam Generation (w/16.5% Eco) 22,317,320 50 36.2069  58.40% 0.3000 3,264,840 0107-0003-000
Water Systems (w/16.5% Eco) 9,220,750 45  40.7632  23.59% 0.3000 544,880 0107-0003-000
of: s 141,557,140 ) 0 0 14,023,820
Taxable Value: 14,023,820
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Chocolate Bayou Plant

FM Road 2917
Alvin, TX 77612

Appraisal Summary
Appraisal Year: 2022

ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERI

ASCEND PERFORMANCE Agent: Jeff Moore
MATERIALS LLC )

ATTN: PROPERTY TAX Agent Phone: (512) 691-2474
DEPARTMENT

PO BOX 711

ALVIN, TX 775120711

Appraiser: Kirk Slaughter
Date Inspected: 4/5/2022

ece Shippl Storage

RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor VAddIuons

Retirements Market Value Component Account

AN 7 Recelving Shipping & Storage 16,697,870 33 217265  56.40% 0.3000 1,123,340 0107-0003-000
(W/60% Eco)
Docks 8,616,690 48 55,2645 207,040 0107-0003-000
Loading & Unloading Racks (w/60% Eco) 10,355,810 45 30.6657 61.06% 0.3000 758,790 0107-0003-000
Pumps & Plping (w/16.6% Eco) 7,733,160 45  26.2352  71.70% 0.5000 2,314,900 0107-0003-000
Rall Spurs 3,092,950 48  56.0226 72,060 0107-0003-000
Refrigerated tanks (w/60% Eco) 13,695,490 45 38.5504  33.78% 0.3000 555,160 0107-0003-000
Slorage Tanks (w/16.6% Eco) 11,087,030 48 139460 91.86% 0.3000 2,561,230 0107-0003-000
Total Receivina, Shippinag & 71,179,000 0 0 7,582,520
Storage
Taxable Value: 7,582,520

Service Facilitles

RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions  Retirements Market Value Component Account
Fire Proteclion Equipment (w/16% Eco) 3,205,770 45 345332  49.24% 0.3000 397,790 0107-0003-000
Site Improvements (Paving, Fence, etc) 14,493,150 45 38.7553  32.89% 0.3000 1,201,230 0107-0003-000
(w/16% Eco)
Total Service Facilities 17,698,920 0 0 1,599,020

Taxable Value: 1,599,020

General Bu s

RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions  Retirements Market Value Component Account

01. Engineering Building
02. Administration Building

TImrsday, June 2, 2022

3,496,400 45  51.3146
3,791,300 45 44,0000 6.10% 0.3000

100,960
187,600

0107-0003-000
0107-0003-000

Page 2 of §



Chocolate Bayou Plant

FM Road 2917

Alvin, TX 77512

ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERI

Appraisal Summary
Appralsal Year: 2022

ASCEND PERFORMANCE

MATERIALS LLC

ATTN: PROPERTY TAX

DEPARTMENT
POBOX 711

ALVIN, TX 775120711

Agent: Jeff Moore
Agent Phone: (512) 691-2474

Appraiser: Kirk Slaughter
Date Inspected: 4/5/2022

General Buildings

RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions  Retirements Market Value Component Account
03. Operations Bldg. & Annexes 11,217,050 45  48.0000 414,030 0107-0003-000
06. Stores & I/E Shop 2,139,080 45  51.3330 61,700 0107-0003-000
07. PTOR Building 936,080 45  51.3331 27,000 0107-0003-000
08. AWO Warehouse 2,184,180 45 51,3331 63,000 0107-0003-000
11. Contractor Lunch & Restrooms 1,028,170 45  48.9861 32,400 0107-0003-000
12. Contractor Fab Shop 2,109,230 45  51.3328 60,840 0107-0003-000
13. Contractor HVAC / I&E Shop 1,039,360 45  47.0832 42,500 0107-0003-000
18, Chemical Warehouse 1,697,480 45  51.3323 46,080 0107-0003-000
20. Contractor Paint Shop 693,390 45  51.3331 20,000 0107-0003-000
23, Distribution Offices 938,590 45  43.2744 10.32% 0.3000 49,380 0107-0003-000
24, Contr. Office(Ex Phenol C.R.) 368,930 45  37.5641 37.92% 0.3000 41,970 0107-0003-000
26. Shop 5 & Tool Room 920,270 45  48.9861 29,000 0107-0003-000
27. Electrical Contractor's Office 189,360 45  33.7565 51.83% 0.3000 29,440 0107-0003-000
gﬂ.“dc‘hocolale Bayou Credit Union 727,240 45  47.0000 29,990 0107-0003-000

ulldin
Mlscellgneous Smaller Buildings (11) 3,829,300 45 432942  10.20% 0.3000 201,140 0107-0003-000
Total General Buildings 37,205,410 0 1,437,030
Taxable Value: 1,437,030

Construction in Progress

Cost Age % Good PctCompl Amt Spent Market Value Component Account

1,000,000 20 100.00% 0.5000 68,250 0107-0003-000

AN 7 Unit

Tlvllisday, June 2, 2022

Page 3of 6



Chocolate Bayou Plant

FM Road 2917
Alvin, TX 77512

Appraisal Summary
Appraisal Year: 2022

ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERI

ASCEND PERFORMANCE Agent: Jeff Moore
MATERIALS LLC .

ATTN: PROPERTY TAX Agent Phone: (512) 691-2474
DEPARTMENT

PO BOX 711

ALVIN, TX 775120711

Appraiser:

Kirk Slaughter
Date Inspected: 4/6/2022

Construction In Progress

Cost Age % Good PctCompl Amt Spent Market Value Component Account
Construction | ess 1,000,000 - 0 68,250
Taxable Value: 68,250
TCEQ Pollution Control Equipment
RCN Life Age % Good Sve Factor Additions  Retirements Market Value Component Account
1999 TCEQ Non-Exempt Value 17,441,265 93.67% 857,610 0107-0003-000
1995 TCEQ Exempt Value 562,650 POLL-MONS-000
1996 TCEQ Exempt Value 110,250 POLL-MONS-000
1999 TCEQ Exempt Value 8,412,120 POLL-MONS-000
2006 TCEQ Exempt Value 949,080 POLL-MONS-000
CEQ Pollu o 17,441,265 0 0 10,891,710
Equipment
Taxable Value: 857,610
ersonal Prope| Invento|
RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions  Retirements Market Value Component Account
Furniture & Fixtures 100.00% 1.0000 8,430 8900-0543-000
Lab/Test Equipment 100.00% 1.0000 1,192,960 8900-0543-000
Mobile Machinery & Equipment 100.00% 1.0000 53,170 8900-0543-000
Personal Computers 100.00% 1.0000 77,240 8900-0543-000
Vehicles 100.00% 1.0000 165,940 8900-0543-000
Inventory (FPT) 100.00% 1.0000 37,500,500 8900-0543-020
Personal Computers 100.00% 1.0000 9,670 8900-0543-050

Thursday, June 2, 2022

Page 4of6



Chocolate Bayou Plant

FM Road 2917
Alvin, TX 77512

Appraisal Summary
Appraisal Year: 2022

ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERI

ASCEND PERFORMANCE Agent: Jeff Moore Appraiser: Kirk Slaughter
MATERIALS LLO A : Date Inspected: 4/5/2022
ATTN: PROPERTY TAX gent Phone: (612) 691-2474 ate Inspected:
DEPARTMENT

PO BOX 711

ALVIN, TX 775120711

Personal Property & Inventory
RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions  Retirements Market Value Component Account
Total Personal Property & Inventory 0 0 0 39,007,910
Taxable Value: 39,007,910
Total Chocolate Bayou 745,929,626 2,409,369 1,681,347 102,740,860
Plant Taxable Value: 92,706,760

Thursda Y, June 2, 2022

Total value of existing improvements for RZ: AN2, AN3 and AN7: $26,159,570
Total value of existing personal property (CIP) for RZ: $68,250

Page & of 5



EXHIBIT C— Address and Legal Description of Proposed Project
APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT FOR BRAZORIA COUNTY
ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS TEXAS, INC.

The proposed investment for Modernization will be constructed at the existing Ascend complex in the City of
Liverpool ETJ at 6220 FM 2917 Alvin, Texas 77511.

A survey of the defined property is attached behind this page.



Ascend Performance Materials Texas, Inc. Perry and Austin League No.2
15.429 Acres Abstract No. 107

AN Unit
Tax Abatement Zone

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  §

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 15.428-acre tract in the Perry and Austin League
No. 2, Abstract No. 107, Brazoria County, Texas. Said 15.429-acre tract is in a 3,000 acre tract
described in a deed to Ascend Performance Materials Texas Inc. as recorded in Clerk's File No.
2013007236 in the Brazoria County Clerk’s Office and is more particularly described by metes
and bounds as follows:

COMMENCING at the most northerly corner of said Perry and Austin League No. 2, Abstract
No. 107, same being the most northerly corner of said 3,000 acre tract and is also the most
southerly west corner of the Perry and Austin League No. 7, Abstract No. 110 and is on the
southeasterly line of the Perry and Austin 1-3/4 League, Abstract No. 37;

THENCE, South 00°04'57" West, along the northeasterly line of said 3,000 acre tract, same
being the northeasterly line of said Perry and Austin League No. 2, Abstract No. 107, for a
distance of 11,240.38 fest to the most easterly corner of said 3,000 acre tract;

THENCE, North 89°57'33" West, along the southeasterly line of said 3,000 acre tract for a
distance of 9,056.01 feet to an angle point;

THENCE, North 00°02'27" East, for a distance of 4,125.52 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING
and southeast corner of the herein described 15.429-acre tract, said point is at the point of
intersection of a line 15-feet west of the centerline of 3rd Street and a line 15-feet north of the
centerline of “C” Street (Plant Coordinates: North 4,127.00°, West 1,431.00").

THENCE, West, along a line 15-feet north of and parallel to the centerline of said "C” Street for
a distance of 576.00 feet to the southwest corner of the herein described tract;

THENCE, North, along a line 15-feet east of and parallel to the centerline of 6" Street for a
distance of 954.00 feet to the northwest comer of the herein described tract;

THENCE, East, along a line 15-feet south of and parallel to the centerline of “E” Street for a
distance of 846.00 feet to the northeast corner of the herein described tract;




THENCE, South, along a line 15-feet west of and parallel to the centerline of 2" Street for a
distance of 454.00 feet to the most northerly southeast corner of the herein described tract;

THENCE, West, along a line 15-feet north of and parallel to the centerline of "D" Street for a
distance of 270.00 feet to an interior corner of the herein described tract;

THENCE, South, along a line 15-feet west of and parallel to the centerline of the
aforementioned 3" Street for a distance of 500.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING,
containing a computed area of 15.429-acres (672,090 square feet).

NOTES:

1. The bearings and coordinate shown hereon are based on the Ascend Plant Control
Monumentation System utilizing Plant Monument No. 2 (N 3519.00, W 515.00) and Plant
Monument No. 5 (N 5074.00, W 515.00).

The corners of this tract have not been monumented at the request of the client.

A separate exhibit map has been prepared in connection with this desecription.

This document was prepared under 22 TAC §663.21 and is not to be used to convey or
establish interests in real property except those rights and interests implied or
established by the creation or reconfiguration of the boundary of the political subdivision
for which it was prepared.
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EXHIBIT D
APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT FOR BRAZORIA COUNTY
ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS TEXAS, INC,

Aerial map showing general location of the complex, existing property, and outline of
property/area to be included in Reinvestment Zone are behind this page.
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EXHIBITE
APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT FOR BRAZORIA COUNTY
ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS TEXAS INC,

COMPANY HISTORY AND OVERVIEW:

Ascend is a global leader in proprietary technologies that are central to the production of nylon, plastics, industrial
fibers and specialty chemicals that serve the apparel, automotive, industrial fiber, military, carpet fiber, chemicals,
compounders, electrical and electronic and fasteners industries as well as agricultural products, animal feed and
personal care products. The business has world scale integrated manufacturing facilities which enables it to develop
new products from its core technologies and provides flexibility to respond to the expanding needs of its customers.
Ascend has sales offices throughout the world, five manufacturing facilities in the United States, and one in
Netherlands.

The company has a long history in the manufacture of Nylon 6,6. In the 1950's, Monsanto formed its Chemicals
Division, which included the production of Nylon 6,6. In 1997, Monsanto spun off its Chemicals Division to form Solutia
Inc. On June 1, 2009, SK Capital Partners, a private investment firm, purchased Solutia’s Integrated Nylon business and
established Ascend Performance Materials Holdings, Inc. (APMH), the parent company of Ascend Performance
Materials LLC. SK Capital Partners assembled a strong executive team, now headquartered in Houston, Texas, with
deep industry roots,

Our Brazoria County plant serves as the key supplier of raw products (Acrylonitrile) to Ascend downstream operations,
as well as a host and supplier of raw product to other on-site, guest manufacturing operations including Novus
International, Cyanco International, indorama, Eastman. These companies and their more than 100 employees rely on
Ascend’s primary products and our unique plant management expertise for their operations.

The company’s Chocolate Bayou plant currently employs approximately 500 employees at 6220 FM 2917 Alvin, Texas
77511, an unincorporated area of Brazoria County, and in the Liverpool industrial District,

A number of in-house contract compantes including Turner Industries and Hargrove Engineering support this site with
their unique expertise and employs an estimated 312 additional full-time employees from this area. As such, we have
an indirect impact on the success of several other Texas companies and the jobs they support.

PROJECT SUMMARY:

Ascend is requesting 100% tax abatement for 7 years under the Modernization provision of Brazoria County’s tax
abatement guidelines. And although some job growth may be possible, we are applying and planning for strictly Job
Retention. Ascend expects to make a total capital investment between $120-140 Million. Excluding some pollution
control qualifying property/equipment, the net new property value is expected to be more than $100 million. Work is
planned to begin in Q3 or Q4 of 2022 and be completed in 2025, Ascend plans to make this investment to drive
technology modernization that will align with best available technology in the industry, reduce air emissions, reduce
solid waste generation, improve asset reliability and long-term viability, yield improvement, and provide capacity
debottlenecking to better support guest companies plans for growth. These investments will not only support Ascend’s
operations, ensure job retention and ensure long-term viability of our business, but will help ensure the long-term
viability of the companies and their employees co-located on our property such as Cyanco, Indorama, Novus, and
Eastman.

Investment in capacity growth and job creation at the site has been difficult to justify in recent years for both Ascend
and companies co-located on our property. This technology-based project intends to change the competitiveness
profile of the site, thus being a key enabler to future growth plans for Ascend as well as for the companies co-located
on our property.



EXHIBITE
APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT FOR BRAZORIA COUNTY
ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS TEXAS INC.

Alternatives to implementing this project:

e Aging, non-competitive plants such as ours (same products) have a history of being shut down unless they go
through such technology transformations — one example as recent as 2019

* Ascend would then be forced ta source raw materials for downstream operations from locations in China and
Middle East where significant capacity is being added over the next 3-4 years

o These raw materials will flow directly to our site in Decatur, Alabama, thus significantly reducing the
overall viability of the Chocolate Bayou Plant

Examples of planned improvements:

e  Environmental, Safety, Security, and Health Focused improvements:

[e]

Significant reduction is air emissions, particularly NOx, through installation of Selective Catalytic
Reduction (SCR) devices at the emission points from the Acrylonitrile process

Switching acrylonitrile catalysts to best in class, more environmentally friendly catalyst

The switch to this catalyst will also enable a ~10% reduction in solids disposal at the site as the process
will use less of the new catalyst than our current catalyst

The Chocolate Bayou plant is currently permitted to add five additionat landfill areas to store future spent
catalyst on our land - through this project, we will not be needing to build these sites to store spent
catalyst

Long-term Viability and Job Retention:

o

This project enables a hew unit for Acetonitrile recovery and sales (hew product) which will reduce site
carbon footprint by an additional 3% and help retain ~500 jobs

It will also improve asset reliability in the Acrylonitrile process through investment in process and
equipment changes to facilitate the implementation of a new catalyst system

Also, by transitioning the new catalyst system, we will improve to best-in-class cost position in the
Acrylonitrile units and improve material usages/yields, and thus Improving site competitiveness

The new catalyst and equipment changes will allow us to run lower pressures and temperatures, and thus
extend useful life of our equipment and improve reliability

While this project in itself will not increase capacity at the site, the equipment changes and new process
conditions at which we will be able to operate will be key enablers for future expansion for both Ascend
and other companies co-located on our site



EXHIBIT F
Brazoria County Tax Abatement application for
Ascend Performance Materials Texas, Inc.

Wastewater treatment capacity already exists on the Ascend site with the current Ascend wastewater
facilities and with deep-well injection. So, there will be no impact on city utilities,



EXHIBIT G
APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT FOR BRAZORIA COUNTY
ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS TEXAS, INC,

This Exhibit is not applicable and was intentionally left blank. We are not requesting a variance.



EXHIBITH
APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT FOR BRAZORIA COUNTY
ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS TEXAS INC,

During the construction and operations phases of the project, Ascend will consider utilizing Brazoria
County vendors, subject to considerations of cost and availability and subject to certain requirements of
quality that meet both industry and Ascend standards.



EXHIBIT |

APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT FOR BRAZORIA COUNTY
ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS TEXAS INC.
List of Personal Property to be Installed

Property Description

Production Life

Estimated Cost (in

Projected Value after

millions) Abatement (7 yrs)
Piping 20 years S 2.80|$ 2d
Steel 20 years S 0.50 | $ 0.4
Instruments 20 years S 190 | $ 1.4
Electrical 20 years S 1.70 | $ 12
TOTAL S 691]8S 5.1




EXHIBITJ
APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT FOR BRAZORIA COUNTY
ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERIALS TEXAS, INC.

This Exhibit is not applicable and was intentionally left blank. We have not submitted any other
abatement applications to taxing jurisdictions in Brazoria County at this time.
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GUIDELINES AND CRITERIA FOR GRANTING TAX ABATEMENT
IN A REINVESTMENT ZONE CREATED IN BRAZORIA COUNTY

WHEREAS, the creation, retention and diversification of job opportunities that bring new wealth are
among the highest civic priority; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of tax abatement is to provide an incentive offered by the tax-payers, i.e.
citizens of Brazoria County, to attract investments, that lead to better quality of life and better services. The
wealth created by these enterprises leads to more service and retail businesses, which in addition to improving
quality of life, increases the tax base. In summary, by giving incentive in terms of tax abatement, the citizens
agree to give up short term tax benefits, for long term benefits; and

WHEREAS, new jobs, investment and industrial diversification will benefit the area economy, provide
needed opportunities, strengthen the real estate market and generate tax revenue to support local services; and

WHEREAS, the communities within Brazoria County must compete with other localities across the
nation currently offering tax inducements to attract new plant and modernization projects; and

WHEREAS, any tax incentives offered in Brazoria County would reduce needed tax revenue unless
strictly limited in application to those new and existing industries that bring new wealth to the community; and

WHEREAS, the abatement of property taxes, when offered to attract capital investment and primary
jobs in industries which bring in money from outside a community instead of merely recirculating dollars within
a community, has been shown to be an effective method of enhancing and diversifying an area of economy; and

WHEREAS, Texas law requires any eligible taxing jurisdiction to establish Guidelines and Criteria as
to eligibility for tax abatement agreements prior to granting of any future tax abatement, and said Guidelines and
Criteria to be unchanged for a two year period unless amended by a three-quarters vote;

WHEREAS, Texas law requires a public hearing regarding the proposed adoption, amendment, repeal,
or reauthorization of tax abatement guidelines and criteria;

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held and these Guidelines and Criteria for Grating Tax Abatement in
a Reinvestment Zone in Brazoria County was approved under Court Order 6.0.3 dated June 28, 2022.

Now, therefore, be it resolved that Brazoria County does hereby adopt these Guidelines and Criteria for
granting tax abatement in reinvestment zones in Brazoria County.
DEFINITIONS Section 1

(a) "Abatement" means the full or partial exemption from ad valorem taxes on certain property in a
reinvestment zone designated by Brazoria County for economic development purposes.

(b)  “Abatement Period” means the period during which all or a portion of the value of real property or
tangible personal property that is the subject of a tax abatement agreement is exempt from taxation.

Revised/Adopted effective 06/28/2022 Page 1
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“Abated Facility Site” (or “proposed abated facility site”) means the tract(s) or area of land underlying
the proposed improvements to be abated.
"Agreement" means a contractual agreement between a property owner and/or lessee and Brazoria
County for the purpose of tax abatement.

"Base year value" means the assessed value of eligible property January 1 preceding the execution of the
agreement plus the agreed upon value of eligible property improvements made after January 1 but before
the execution of the agreement.

"Brazoria County Vendor and Services" means a company that employs Brazoria County residents and
pays Brazoria County taxes.

"Deferred maintenance" means the improvements necessary for continued operations which do not
improve productivity or alter the process technology.

"Distribution Center Facility" means buildings and structures, including machinery and equipment, used
or to be used primarily to receive, store, service, or distribute goods or materials owned by the facility
operator where seventy percent (70%) of the goods or services are distributed outside of Brazoria
County.

"Economic Development" means participation in or support of an organized program or entity which for
the purpose of its mission, engages in activities designed to encourage employment opportunities
development/commercial and manufacturing business/industry to locate and/or expand in Brazoria
County, thus expanding and diversifying the tax base as well as increasing the economic strength and
stability of Brazoria County.

"Eligible jurisdiction" means Brazoria County and any municipality or other local taxing jurisdictions
eligible to abate taxes according to Texas law, the majority of which is located in Brazoria County that
levies ad valorem taxes upon and provides services to reinvestment zone designated by Brazoria County.

“Employee” for the purposes of the economic qualifications of Section 2(h)(2) of these Guidelines and
Criteria shall include all persons directly employed by the owner of the planned improvement at the
abated facility site/reinvestment zone together with any independent contractor or employee of
independent contractors employed on a full-time (40 hours per week equivalent) basis at the facility
site/reinvestment zone continuously for the duration of the abatement agreement.

“Existing facility” is the facility described in Section 2 (a) that will be expanded or modernized and
which contains the proposed improvements to be abated. A manufacturing or processing unit or units of
a larger plant complex that separately comprise a manufacturing or production sub-unit of the larger
plant shall be considered the existing facility for purposes of the Section 2 (h) (2) employment retention
requirement (that the planned improvements cause the retention or prevention of loss of employment of
10 employees or 50% of the employees of the existing facility, whichever is greater). For example, if an
existing facility has 100 employees, an expansion or modernization of all or part of that facility must
result in the retention of at least 50 employees employed at or in connection with the expanded or
modernized “existing facility” in order for the facility improvements to qualify for abatement.

"Expansion" means the addition of buildings, structures, machinery or equipment for purposes of
increasing production capacity.

Revised/Adopted effective 06/28/2022 Page 2



(n)

()

(@)

(1)

(s)

®

(w)

V)

(W)

(x)

"Facility" means property improvements completed or in the process of construction which together
comprise an integral whole.

"Manufacturing Facility" means buildings and structures, including machinery and equipment, the
primary purpose of which is or will be the manufacture of tangible goods or materials or the processing
of such goods or materials by physical or chemical change.

"Modernization" means the replacement and upgrading of existing facilities which increases the
productive input or output, updates the technology or substantially lowers the unit cost of the operation.
Modernization may result from the construction, alteration or installation of buildings, structures, fixed
machinery or equipment. It shall not be for the purpose of reconditioning, refurbishing, or repairing.

"New Facility" means a property previously undeveloped which is placed into service by means other
than or in conjunction with expansion or modernization.

"Other Basic Industry" means buildings and structures including fixed machinery and equipment not
elsewhere described, used or to be used for the production of products or services which serve a market
primarily outside Brazoria County.

"Productive Life" means the number of years a property improvement is expected to be in service. After
a cessation of production, the productive life of property improvements may be deemed to end, at
County’s election, on the date of cessation of production either upon (1) a determination by the County
that it is unlikely the improvement(s) will be reactivated as an integral part of a producing facility, and/or
(2) the expiration of eighteen (18) continuous or non-consecutive months of non-production in any
twenty-four (24) month period following the date the property improvement(s) cease to be in active
service as part of a facility operating in a producing capacity. Upon cessation of production and for
calculation of the recapture amount of taxes, the “productive life” will be determined to begin on the
effective date of the tax abatement as set forth in the Agreement.

"Qualified Vendors and Services" means those vendors and services that meet the company's individual
stated requirements, which can include but are not limited to: safety, financial condition, environmental
record, quality or ability to perform.

"Regional Entertainment Facility" means buildings and structures, including machinery and equipment,
used or to be used to provide entertainment through the admission of the general public where seventy
percent (70%) of users reside at least 50 miles from its location in Brazoria County.

"Research Facility" means buildings and structures, including machinery and equipment, used or to be
used primarily for research or experimentation to improve or develop new tangible goods or materials or
to improve or develop the production processes thereto.

"Regional Service Facility" means buildings and structures, including machinery and equipment, used or
to be used to service goods where seventy percent (70%) of the goods being serviced originate outside of
Brazoria County.

“Tangible personal property” means tangible personal property classified as such under state law, but
excludes inventory and/or supplies, ineligible property as defined herein, and tangible personal property
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that was located in the reinvestment zone at any time before the period covered by the agreement with
the County.

ABATEMENT AUTHORIZED Section 2

)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(©)

®

Authorized Facility. A facility may be eligible for abatement if it is a: Manufacturing Facility, Research
Facility, Distribution Center or Regional Service Facility, Regional Entertainment Facility, Other Basic
Industry, or a facility that Commissioners Court determines would enhance job creation and the
economic future of Brazoria County.

Creation of New Value. Abatement may only be granted for the additional value of eligible property
improvements made subsequent to and specified in an abatement agreement between Brazoria County
and the real property owner, tangible personal property owner, leasehold interest, and/or lessee, subject
to such limitations as Brazoria County may require.

New and Existing Facilities. Abatement may be granted for new facilities and improvements to existing
facilities for purposes of modernization or expansion.

Eligible Property. Abatement may be extended to the value of buildings, structures, tangible personal
property as defined in the Tax Code including fixed machinery and equipment, site improvements and
related fixed improvements necessary to the operation and administration of the facility.

Tangible Personal Property: Abatement may be granted with the owner of tangible personal property
located on real property in a reinvestment zone to exempt from taxation (1) all or a portion of the value
of the real property, (2) all or a portion of the value of the tangible personal property located on the real
property, or (3) all or a portion of the value of both.

An abatement may be granted with the owner of tangible personal property or an improvement located
on tax-exempt real property that is located in a designated reinvestment zone to exempt all or a portion
of the value of the tangible personal property or improvement located on the real propetty.

Ineligible Property. The following type of property shall be fully taxable and ineligible for tax
abatement: land, existing improvements, tangible personal property that the Brazoria County Appraisal
District classifies as inventory or supplies, tools, furnishings, and other forms of movable personal
property; vehicles, watercraft, aircraft, housing, convalescent homes, assisted living homes/centers, hotel
accommodations, retail facilities, deferred maintenance investments, property to be rented or leased
except as provided in Section 2(f), tangible personal property located in the reinvestment zone prior to
the effective date of the tax abatement agreement, property already subject to real or personal property
tax(es) moved from one location in Brazoria County to the reinvestment zone, real property with a
productive life of less than 10 years, property owned or used by the State of Texas or its political
subdivisions or by any organizations owned, operated or directed by a political subdivision of the State
of Texas, or any other property for which abatement is not allowed by State law.

Leased Facilities. Leasehold Interest: Abatement may be granted with the owner of a leasehold interest
in tax-exempt real property located in a reinvestment zone designated to exempt all or a portion of the
value of the leasehold interest in the real property.
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Lessee Interest: Abatement may be granted with a lessee of taxable real property located in a
reinvestment zone to exempt from taxation (1) all or a portion of the value of the fixtures,
improvements, or other real property owned by the lessee and located on the property that is subject to
the lease, (2) all or a portion of the value of tangible personal property owned by the lessee and located
on the real property that is the subject of the lease, or (3) all or a portion of the value of both the fixtures,
improvements, or other real property and the tangible personal property defined herein.

Leasehold Interest/Lessee shall be required to submit with its application a copy of the executed lease
agreement between lessor/lessee demonstrating a minimum lease term double the abatement term
granted.

Value and Term of Abatement. Abatement shall be granted effective with the January | valuation date
immediately following the date of the Commissioners Court Order granting the abatement and approving
the abatement application. Commissioners Court shall determine the percent of value and the term of
the abatement based upon the overall value of the project, the number and types of new jobs being
created, the extent to which local labor or local subcontractors will be used in the construction phase, the
types and values of public improvements to be made, and the extent to which local vendors and suppliers
will be used during the productive life of the project. Commissioners Court may vary the length and
abatement percentage on a case by case basis upon consideration of the factors above and any other
relevant factors. The term of abatement may be up to 10 years or one-half (1/2) of the productive life of
the improvement, whichever is less. The “productive life” will be calculated from the effective date of
the tax abatement and the date the equipment ceased to be in service. The abatement may be extended
through an initial agreement and a subsequent agreement may be required to comply with state law
regarding the term of the reinvestment zone. See Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

If it is determined that the abatement period would better benefit the County and the Applicant by
deferring the commencement date beyond the January 1 following the Commissioners Court Order
granting the abatement and approving the abatement application, the County may defer the
commencement date of the abatement period to a future date certain. The deferral of the commencement
date will not allow the duration of the abatement period to extend beyond ten (10) years. However, in no
event shall the abatement begin later than the January 1 following the commencement of construction.

If a modernization project includes facility replacement, the abated value shall be the value of the new
unit(s) less the value of the old unit(s).

New eligible properties must be in active service and operation as part of a facility operating in a
producing capacity for a period equal to double the abatement period (i.e. seven year abatement, then in
producing capacity for 14 years) in order to receive the full term of the abatement granted and not be
subject to the term reduction and recapture/payment obligation provisions.

Economic Qualification. In order to be eligible for designation as a reinvestment zone and to qualify for
tax abatement the planned improvement:

D must be reasonably expected to increase and must actually increase the value of the property in
the amount of $1 million or more;

2) must create employment for at least 10 people on a full-time (40 hours per week equivalent)
basis in Brazoria County for the duration of the abatement period at the abated facility site
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described in the tax abatement application; or alternatively, must retain and prevent the loss of
employment of 10 employees or fifty percent (50%) of the existing number of employees, at the
time of application, employed at or in connection with the existing facility containing the abated
facility site described in the tax abatement application, whichever is greater, for the duration of
the abatement period. The following is applicable to the employment retention/preventing loss of
employment requirement:

a. “Existing facility” is the facility described in Section 2 (a) that will be expanded or
modernized and which contains the proposed improvements to be abated. A
manufacturing or processing unit or units of a larger plant complex that separately
comprise a manufacturing or production sub-unit of the larger plant shall be
considered the existing facility for purposes of the Section 2(h)(2) employment
retention requirement (that the planned improvements cause the retention or
prevention of loss of employment of 10 employees or 50% of the employees of the
existing facility, whichever is greater). For example, if a large plant complex has a
sub-unit that produces chlorine and 100 employees are employed at or in connection
with that unit, an expansion or modernization of all or part of that facility must result
in the retention of at least 50 employees employed at or in connection with the
expanded or modernized “existing facility” in order for the facility improvements to
qualify for abatement.

b. Employees of a larger plant unit transferred or assigned to and employed at or in
connection with a new sub-unit containing the planned improvements, constructed on
undeveloped land constituting the proposed abated facility site/reinvestment zone
shall be considered “created” employment for purposes of this sub-section.

The proposed number of employees to be employed at the abated facility as stated in the
abatement application for the property that is the subject of the tax abatement agreement
(including the projected creation or retention of employment) must be maintained for the
duration of the abatement period at the abated facility site. For purposes of this sub-section, in
order for a planned improvement to be considered as preventing the loss of employment or
retaining employment, the abated facility/project must be necessary in order to retain or keep
employment at levels as indicated in the application and in order to retain the proposed number
of employees at the abated facility as indicated in the application. The owner/Applicant seeking
to qualify on the basis of retention or preventing loss of employment must provide a detailed
statement as an attachment to its application affirmatively representing compliance with this sub-
section and explaining the necessity of this project to prevent loss of employment. Any variance
from the requirements of this sub-section is subject to approval of Commissioners Court in
accordance with the variance section of these Guidelines & Criteria.

3) must be not expected to solely or primarily have the effect of transferring employment from one
part of the county to another part of the county. A variance may be requested relative to this
provision which approval shall be at the sole discretion of the County.

@) must be necessary because capacity cannot be provided efficiently utilizing existing improved
property;

Additionally, the owner of the project:
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(5) must provide for and pay, at the time of filing an application for tax abatement, a non-refundable
application fee of $1,000. A part of the application fee will be dedicated by Brazoria County to
economic development programs authorized by Local Government Code, Section 381.004.

6) must file a plan statement with application demonstrating willingness and planned efforts to use
qualified Brazoria County union and/or nonunion vendors and services where applicable in the
construction and operations of the facility. Brazoria County vendors and services must be
competitive with non-county union and/or nonunion vendors and services regarding price,
quality, safety, availability and ability to perform. It is preferred that applicant seek qualified
workers who are United States citizens and veterans and also legal residents prior to seeking
workers from other countries.

@) will annually, for the term of the abatement, contribute .000207 of the value reported in "Part IV
Section F" of the abatement application (estimated value of abated improvements at the
conclusion of the abatement period). Air carriers receiving abatement will contribute an amount
equal to .000207 of the estimated value of the personal property of the air carrier indicated in its
Application. Fach project will contribute no more than $25,000 for projects $500 million or less
in capital investment and no more than $50,000 for project greater than $500 million in capital
investment nor less than $2,000 annually to be used specifically to fund economic development
in Brazoria County as authorized by Local Government Code, Section 381.004. The annual
contribution shall be paid to Brazoria County through the County Auditor's Office on or before
January 1 of each year of the tax abatement contract term.

® must not file with the Brazoria County Appraisal District a valuation or taxpayer protest or notice
of protest pursuant to the Texas Property Tax Code during the abatement period legally
protesting the valuation of the abated improvements of a manufacturing facility pursuant to an
appraisal method that produces a valuation of improvements based on each improvement’s value
as a separate item of personal property rather than the improvements’ value as integral fixtures of
a producing manufacturing facility. An owner’s legal protest of the improvements’ value
pursuant to the Texas Property Tax Code must be based on and use accepted appraisal methods
and techniques allowed by law (Texas Property Tax Code) and uniform standards of professional
appraisal practice. The filing of a valuation protest or notice of protest contrary to this standard
shall cause the tax abatement agreement to be subject to termination and recapture of all
previously abated taxes.

) must not be a defendant in any litigation by the County seeking recovery or recapture of
previously abated taxes.

(10)  will be wholly responsible for all County roads and right-of-way (including bridges,
culverts, ditches, etc.) and damages caused thereto as a result of the construction, on-
going maintenance, and operations of the Abated Facility Site as well as associated
facilities to the Abated Facility Site, including but not limited to, the following:

¢ Cost to maintain the roads utilized for construction of the Abated Facility Site in
an effort to keep the road safe for the traveling public will be tracked by the
County and invoiced on a regular basis to the Abatee.

¢ Cost to reconstruct the roadway, if needed, will be actual cost to reconstruct the
County roads and right-of way incurred by the County and invoiced to the Abatee.

Revised/Adopted effective 06/28/2022 Page 7



(M)

(1)

(12)

Taxability. From the execution of the abatement contract to the end of the agreement period, taxes shall

These costs will include all construction costs as well as all related professional
services for the repair work.

Abatee shall coordinate with the County Engineering Department regarding any
and all use of County roads and right-of-way for construction, maintenance and
operation of Abated Facility Site in accordance with County regulations in place
for use of County facilities. In order to comply with County regulations, Abatee
shall schedule and attend a pre-development meeting with the County Engineering
Department prior to commencing construction. Abatee shall submit a road use
plan to the County Engineering Department at least 3 days prior to attending the
pre~-development meeting. The road use plan should identify all County roads that
may be affected by construction or use of the Abated Facility Site, as well as, the
routes of any related pipelines.

Abatee shall execute a Developer Agreement relating to the reconstruction and
repair of affected County roads. Abatee shall not begin construction, of the Abated
Facility until the Developer Agreement has been fully executed. Beginning
construction prior to the execution of a Developer Agreement will result in the
cancellation of the Abatement.

will dedicate to the County, prior to the issuance of any permits, any right-of-way on
Applicant’s property considered necessary by the Brazoria County Engineer.

will dedicate to the County or a drainage district with jurisdiction, any drainage
easement(s) considered necessary by the Brazoria County Engineer or an engineer from
the appropriate drainage district.

be payable as follows:

(1
)

€)

The value of ineligible property as provided in Section 2(e) shall be fully taxable;

the base year value of existing eligible property as determined each year shall be fully taxable;

the additional value of new eligible property shall be taxable in the manner described in Section

APPLICATION Section 3

(2)

(b)

The Application for tax abatement may be obtained from the County Judge’s Office or on the Brazoria
County website at www.brazoria-county.com. Applicant may contact the Judge’s Office at (979) 864-

1200 or (281) 756-1200.

Any present or potential owner of taxable property in Brazoria County may request the creation of a
reinvestment zone and tax abatement by filing a tax abatement application with Brazoria County. The
application shall be filed with the County Judge by providing two (2) hardcopies and an electronic
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(©)

(d)

(e)

®

version. The application provided will be furnished to each member of Commissioners Court and the
Tax Abatement Review Committee (TARC). After filing the application, the Applicant shall provide an
economic impact analysis report, in a format comparable to the Texas Governor’s economic impact
analysis report, to the County Judge’s Office prior to the TARC meeting on the Applicant’s tax
abatement application.

The application shall consist of a completed application form accompanied by: a general description of
the proposed use and the general nature and extent of the modernization, expansion or new
improvements which will be a part of the facility; a map and property description; CAD data or a
shapefile with the boundaries of the reinvestment zone; and a time schedule for undertaking and
completing the planned improvements. In the case of modernizing, a statement of the assessed value of
the facility, separately stated for real and personal property, shall be given for the tax year immediately
preceding the application. The application form shall require such financial and other information as
Brazoria County deems appropriate for evaluating the financial capacity and other factors of the
Applicant. Applicant should not submit confidential information as part of the application. If doing so
cannot be avoided, a general description in non-confidential terms should be included on the application,
along with a sealed document containing the confidential information as an attachment and clearly
marked “CONFIDENTIAL”.

Upon receipt of a completed application, the County Judge shall notify in writing the presiding officer of
the governing body of each eligible jurisdiction. Before acting upon the application, Brazoria County
Commissioners Court shall hold a public hearing at which interested parties shall be entitled to speak
and present written materials for or against the approval of the tax abatement. The public hearing shall
also afford the Applicant and the designated representative of any eligible jurisdiction opportunity to
show cause why the abatement should or should not be granted. Notice of the public hearing shall be
clearly identified on a Brazoria County notice to be posted at least 30 days prior to the hearing.

After receipt of an application for creation of a reinvestment zone and application for abatement, the Tax
Abatement Review Committee (TARC) shall prepare a feasibility study setting out the impact of the
proposed reinvestment zone and tax abatement. The feasibility study shall include, but not be limited to,
an estimate of the economic effect of the creation of the zone and the abatement of taxes and the benefit
to the eligible jurisdiction and the property to be included in the zone. The economic impact analysis
report provided by the Applicant shall be attached to the feasibility study and included as part of the
feasibility study report.

If upon written request for a legal opinion or interpretation from the Commissioners Court or its
members, the legal counsel for Brazoria County determines that the application does not appear to
comply with the written language of the Guidelines and Criteria, a public hearing on said application if
already set, shall be postponed for a period of at least thirty days from the scheduled date of public
hearing to allow time for further review by the Commissioners Court or any duly appointed review
committee, or if an initial setting has not been made, the hearing on such application shall be set on the
Commissioners Court agenda no sooner than sixty (60) days from the time the Court enters an order to
set the public hearing date.

The Applicant shall file a supplement or addendum to its application to show cause why the application
should be approved and shall present reasons at the public hearing on the same.
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Provided that any final decision or interpretation as to the intent and meaning or policy of any provision
or its written language; any final decision as to whether or not an application complies or does not
comply with the guidelines and criteria; and any final decision as to whether to grant or deny tax
abatement shall be made by the Commissioners Court at its sole discretion.

Brazoria County shall not establish a reinvestment zone for the purpose of Abatement with the County if
it finds that the request for the abatement was filed after the commencement of construction, alteration,
or installation of improvements related to a proposed modernization, expansion or new facility.

Brazoria County shall not establish a reinvestment zone for an Applicant that is not seeking an
Abatement with the County under Chapter 312 of the Tax Code if construction, alteration, or installation
of improvements related to a proposed modernization, expansion, or new facility has begun prior to the
creation of the reinvestment zone. In order for an Applicant that is not seeking an Abatement with the
County to request the creation of a reinvestment zone, the Applicant shall submit the request in writing
to the County Judge. The request must include a request for the creation of a reinvestment zone by both
the Applicant and the taxing entity that would be entering into an Abatement, a brief description of the
project, a map or survey depicting the proposed reinvestment zone, and metes and bounds of the
proposed reinvestment zone. The Applicant shall post notice, provided by the County, as required by
Chapter 312 of the Tax Code.

Variance. Requests for variance from the provisions of Subsections (a) (b) (e) (g), (h) (1), (h) (2) and/or
(h) (3) of Section 2 may be made in written form to the County Judge with a copy forwarded to the
TARC. Such requests shall include a complete description of the circumstances explaining why the
Applicant should be granted a variance. Approval of a request requires a four-fifths (4/5) vote of the
Commissioners Court.

Special Variance: Air Carriers. A special variance from all applicable provisions of these guidelines
and criteria, with the exception of Section 2 (h) (5) and (h) (7) may be granted allowing abatement or
partial abatement of ad valorem taxes on the personal property of a certificated or non-certificated air
carrier that owns or leases taxable real property in Brazoria County provided that the personal property
has a value of at least $10,000,000. Approval of a request for this variance requires a three-fourth (3/4)
vote of the Commissioners Court.

APPROVAL Section 4

(2)

Neither a reinvestment zone nor abatement agreement shall be authorized if it is determined that:
€)) there would be a substantial adverse effect on the provision of government service or tax base;
2) the Applicant has insufficient financial capacity;

3) planned or potential use of the property would constitute hazard to public safety, health or
morals; or,

@) violation of other codes or laws.
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AGREEMENT Section 5

(a) After approval, Brazoria County Commissioners Court shall formally pass a resolution and execute an
agreement with the Applicant as required which shall include:

()
)
©)
)

©)

(6)
(N

(8)

estimated value to be abated and the base year value;
percent of value to be abated each year as provided in Section 2(g);
the commencement date and the termination date of abatement;

the proposed use of the facility; nature of construction, time schedule, map, property description
and improvement list as provided in Application, Sections I and III;

contractual obligations in the event of default, violation of terms or conditions, delinquent taxes,
recapture, administration and assignment as provided in Sections 2(a), 2(f), 2(g), 2(h) 6, 7, and 8;

size of investment and average number of jobs involved for the period of abatement; and

provision that Applicant shall annually furnish information necessary for Brazoria County's
evaluation of Applicant’s compliance with the terms and conditions of the tax abatement
agreement and these guidelines and criteria (in the form of an annual report/statement of
compliance), together with an additional provision that Brazoria County may, at its election,
request and obtain information from Applicant as is necessary for the County's evaluation of
Applicant’s compliance with the terms and conditions of the tax abatement agreement and these
guidelines and criteria. See Attachment A.

provision that, upon expiration of the tax abatement agreement, Applicant shall begin annually
reporting the status of the abated improvements regarding active service and operation as part of
a facility operating in a producing capacity. Reporting will be for the same amount of years as
the tax abatement period (e.g. seven year abatement, then follow-up reporting for seven more
years). See Attachment B.

(b) Such agreement shall be executed within sixty (60) days after the Applicant has forwarded all necessary
information and documentation to Brazoria County.

RECAPTURE Section 6

(a) In the event the facility contemplated herein is completed and begins producing product or service, but
the company fails to maintain the level of employment (including the projected creation or retention of
employment) stated in the abatement application for the property that is the subject of the abatement
agreement, the County may elect to: (1) Declare a default and terminate the abatement agreement
without recapturing prior years’ abated taxes; (2) Declare a default, terminate the agreement and order a
recapture of all or part of the previous years’ abated taxes; or (3) Set specific terms and conditions for
the continuation of the abatement exemption for the duration of the term of the agreement under its
present terms or alter the amount of the abatement for the remaining term of the agreement.
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(©)

(d)

Should Brazoria County determine that the company or individual is in default according to the terms
and conditions of its agreement, Brazoria County shall notify the company or individual in writing at the
address stated in the agreement and if such is not cured within sixty (60) days from the date of such
notice ("Cure Period"), then the agreement may be terminated.

In the event that the company or individual (1) allows its ad valorem taxes owed the County to become
delinquent and fails to timely and properly follow the legal procedures for their protest and/or contest, or
(2) violates any of the terms and conditions of the abatement agreement and fails to cure during the Cure
Period, the agreement then may be terminated and all taxes previously abated by virtue of the agreement
will be recaptured and paid within sixty (60) days of the termination.

Failure to provide any requested statement or information pursuant to the provisions described in Section
5(a)(7) without just cause within sixty (60) days of the request for the information or the presentation of
any false or misleading statement may, at the County’s option, be construed as a default by the company
or individual and cause for immediate termination of the tax abatement agreement and recapture of all
previously abated taxes, if after written notice of default, the company or individual has not cured such
default prior to the expiration of thirty (30) days from such written notice. The Cure Period provisions
of sub-sections (b) and (c) above are not applicable to a default and termination under this paragraph.

ADMINISTRATION Section 7

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The Chief Appraiser of the County shall annually determine an assessment of the real and personal
property comprising the reinvestment zone. FEach year, the company or individual receiving abatement
shall furnish the assessor with such information as may be necessary for the abatement. Once value has
been established, the Chief Appraiser shall notify the eligible jurisdictions which levy taxes on the
amount of the assessment.

The agreement shall stipulate that TARC of Brazoria County will have access to the reinvestment zone
during the term of the abatement to inspect the facility to determine if the terms and conditions of the
agreement are being met. All inspections will be made only after the giving of twenty-four (24) hours
prior notice and will only be conducted in such a manner as to not unreasonably interfere with the
construction and/or operation of the facility. All inspections will be made with one or more
representatives of the company or individual and in accordance with their safety standards.

Tax Abatement Review Committee:

The Commissioners Court shall appoint a standing Tax Abatement Review Committee (TARC) for
purposes of (i) reviewing the tax abatement application and preparing the feasibility study report
required by Section 3(d) of these guidelines; (ii) conducting annual inspections and/or evaluations of the
abated facilities to insure compliance with the terms/conditions of the tax abatement agreement.

The Tax Abatement Review Committee shall be comprised of, but not limited to, a representative
appointed by each Commissioners Court member. The County Auditor, County Treasurer, District
Attorney representative, and County Tax Assessor Collector shall serve as ex-officio members of the
Committee to advise on abatement qualifications and procedures. The County Judge and the
Commissioner of the Precinct in which a proposed abated facility will be located will serve on the
Committee during the period when the Committee is preparing the feasibility study report and
conducting the annual inspection and/or evaluation of the facility.
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(e) Upon commencement of construction, the owner of an abated facility must submit a written
report/statement of compliance annually during the life of the abatement to the Brazoria County
Commissioners Court and the Tax Abatement Review Committee clearly detailing the status of the
facility and how it is complying with the abatement guidelines. The Committee shall annually evaluate
each abated facility and report possible violations to the contract and agreement to the Brazoria County
Commissioners Court. The form of annual report that shall be used by the owner is attached as
Attachment A.

¢3) Upon expiration of the Tax Abatement term, the owner of the abated improvements must submit a
written report/statement of compliance annually, beginning January 1 after the expiration of the tax
abatement term, documenting that the abated improvements remain in active service and operation as
part of a facility operating in a producing capacity for an additional period equal to the abatement period
granted and completed (e.g. seven year abatement, then in producing capacity for an additional 7 years
after expiration of the tax abatement agreement) in order to receive the full term of the abatement
granted and not be subject to the term reduction and recapture/payment obligation provisions. The
Report shall be delivered to the County Judge. The Committee shall annually evaluate each abated
facility and report possible violations to the contract and agreement to the Brazoria County
Commissioners Court. A form of annual report that may be used by the owner is attached as Attachment
B to these Guidelines & Criteria, and the owner’s annual report shall, at a minimum, contain the
information shown in the Attachment B form.

(g The County shall timely file with the Texas Department of Commerce and the Property Tax Division of
the State Comptroller's office all information required by the Tax Code.

ASSIGNMENT AND MODIFICATION Section 8

Abatement may be transferred and assigned by the holder to a new owner or lessee of the same facility upon the
approval by resolution of Brazoria County subject to the financial capacity of the assignee and provided that all
conditions and obligations in the abatement agreement are guaranteed by the execution of a new contractual
agreement with Brazoria County. Assignee shall submit a tax abatement application, including financial
information to the County Judge’s office prior to consideration of assignment. Full assignment of the abatement
requires approval by the TARC in addition to approval through public hearing in Commissioners Court. No
assignment or transfer shall be approved if the new parties to the existing agreement, the new owner or new
lessee are liable to Brazoria County or any eligible jurisdiction for delinquent taxes or other obligations.
Approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Abatement may be modified or amended. A modification or amendment, except those that change the
commencement date, correct clerical errors, or make administrative changes (including changes to the
notification section or the company name) requires approval through public hearing in Commissioners Court.

PROVISIONS REGARDING CITY-INITIATED ABATEMENTS Section 9

(a) This section is applicable to tax abatement applications for property located in a reinvestment zone
designated by a city and applications by Applicants who have previously entered into a tax abatement
agreement with a city regarding that property.

(b) All provisions of these Guidelines & Criteria are applicable to city-initiated reinvestment zones and
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(d)

(e)

®
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abated areas within a city’s territorial limits unless otherwise stated herein or provided by law.

An Applicant shall file a tax abatement application on the County’s application form together with all
attachments and statements described in the application instructions and in subsection (d) herein below.

Upon receipt of a tax abatement application applicable to property within a city-designated reinvestment
zone subject to a city’s tax abatement agreement, the application shall be reviewed for approval as to (a)
correct application form, (b) represented compliance with economic value estimates and employment
criteria of Section 2(h) of the Guidelines & Criteria, (c) legal description requirements, (d) attachment of
a correct copy of the city’s ordinance designating the area as a reinvestment zone and granting abatement
and (e) attachment of a correct copy of the fully executed tax abatement agreement between the city and
the Applicant.

After review (and subject to approval of the matters in (d) above) and meeting of the TARC, the
application will be placed on the next Commissioners Court meeting for consideration. If there are any
compliance problems with the application (including any problems to be resolved or amendments to the
application to be made), the County Judge and Precinct Commissioners shall be advised of these
compliance problems/matters to be resolved in a memo from the Civil Division-District Attorney’s
Office. No Application shall be placed on the Agenda if the application fails to attach both the
ordinance designating reinvestment zone and the copy of the fully executed tax abatement agreement
between the city and the Applicant, or which is deficient as to application form or legal description. In
such case the Applicant shall be informed of the necessity of attaching those documents or making
necessary corrections, and there will be no further processing of the application until the same are
received.

The notice provisions of Section 3(d) are not applicable to an application under this section.
The percentage of property value abated and the term of abatement shall be the same as that stated in the

city’s tax abatement agreement unless otherwise specifically ordered in the Commissioners Court order
granting abatement.

SUNSET PROVISION Section 10

(2)

(b)

(©)

These Guidelines and Criteria are effective upon the date of their adoption and will remain in force for
two years, at which time all reinvestment zones and tax abatement contracts created pursuant to its
provisions will be reviewed by Brazoria County to determine whether the goals have been achieved.
Based on that review, the Guidelines and Criteria will be modified, renewed or eliminated, provided that
such actions shall not affect existing contracts or applications for tax abatement filed prior to the
expiration of said Guidelines and Criteria. Applications for abatement filed prior to the expiration of the
Guidelines and Criteria shall be governed by the provisions of these Guidelines and Criteria regardless
of any subsequent modification or amendment.

This policy is mutually exclusive of existing Industrial District Contracts and owners of real property in
areas deserving of special attention as agreed by the eligible jurisdictions.

These guidelines and policies for Tax Abatement shall be effective June 28, 2022, and shall remain in
force until June 28, 2024, unless amended or superseded, modified, renewed, or eliminated by
Commissioners Court prior to that date.

Revised/Adopted effective 06/28/2022 Page 14
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ATTACHMENT
A

(TO THE BRAZORIA COUNTY GUIDELINES & CRITERIA FOR GRANTING TAX
ABATEMENT)
(This form is located at www.brazoria-county.com )

ANNUAL REPORT FORM

Revised/Adopted effective 06/28/2022 Page 16



ANNUAL REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 5(a)(7) AND 7(e) OF
THE BRAZORIA COUNTY GUIDELINES &
CRITERIA ON TAX ABATEMENT

RE: TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENT

(Company/Owner Name)

REINVESTMENT ZONE (RZ) NO. (Number of RZ, if applicable)
1. Commencement and/or completion date of the contemplated improvements described in the tax abatement agreement.

Date of commencement of construction:

Date of completion all contemplated improvements:

2. Number of permanent employees, contract employees and temporary contract employees currently employed by you at the tax
abated facility location or construction site as of the date of this Report. (See definitions below).

Permanent Employees:

*Permanent Contract Employees
(* List contract employees employed
on a full-time, 40 hours per week
equivalency basis and who are
expected to be employed on a full-time
basis for the duration of the
abatement period. Do not include
temporary contract employees.)

**Temporary Contract Employees
(**List temporary contract employees
who are employed for a temporary
period ending prior to expiration of the
tax abatement term)

3. Status of construction of the contemplated improvements, percentage of construction completed and Owner’s estimate of
taxable value of constructed improvements on the date of the Report.

Percentage of construction completed:

Estimated value of Improvements:
Asof

Revised/Adopted effective 06/28/2022 Page 17



4.  Status of production of the completed facility and the productive service capacity of the improvements. (only applicable to a
completed facility that has previously commenced production)

Is the abated facility currently producing the product Check One
or similar product described in the tax abatement agreement? ( )Yesor( )No

If the answer to the above question is “No”,

please state the date or time period when production ceased
and attach a narrative explanation of the reason for cessation
of production as Attachment B.

If production at this abated facility is

shut down, please state the expected

date or time period, if any, at which/during which

you expect the facility to resume production operations.
If you do not expect to resume production at this
abated facility, please state “plant closed” in

the blank space.

State your estimate of the expected

productive life of the abated facility and its improvements as

measured from the beginning date of production until the expected
permanent cessation of production (or in other words, the total number
of years, if any, that you expect the abated facility improvements to be
in service as part of the operations of a producing facility, including

in your total any previous years of production prior to the date of this report.)

5. Include a list of Brazoria County vendors and services that you have used
and attach the same as Attachment A to this Report.

Is the list of Brazoria County vendors and services Check One
attached? ( )Yesor( )No

To the best of my knowledge, the above information and estimates are true and correct.

Owner:

By:

Printed Name:

Title/Position

Date:

Revised/Adopted effective 06/28/2022 Page 18



ATTACHMENT
B

(TO THE BRAZORIA COUNTY GUIDELINES & CRITERIA FOR GRANTING TAX
ABATEMENT)
(This form is located at www.brazoria-county.com )

REPORT FORM
After the initial term of the
Tax Abatement Agreement

Revised/Adopted effective 06/28/2022 Page 19



PRODUCTIVE LIFE REPORT
TAX ABATEMENT TERM COMPLETED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 5(a)(8) AND 7(f) OF
THE BRAZORIA COUNTY GUIDELINES &
CRITERIA ON TAX ABATEMENT

RE: TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENT

(Company/Owner Name)

REINVESTMENT ZONE (RZ) NO. (Number of RZ, if applicable)

Effective Date of Tax Abatement:

1. Status of production of the completed facility and the productive service capacity of the improvements.

Is the abated facility currently producing the product Check One
or similar product described in the tax abatement agreement? ( YYesor( )No

If the answer to the above question is “No”,

please state the date or time period when production ceased
and attach a narrative explanation of the reason for cessation
of production as Attachment A.

If production at this abated facility is

shut down, please state the expected

date or time period, if any, at which/during which

you expect the facility to resume production operations.
If you do not expect to resume production at this
abated facility, please state “plant closed” in

the blank space.

State your estimate of the expected

productive life of the abated facility and its improvements as

measured from the beginning date of production until the expected
permanent cessation of production (or in other words, the total number
of years, if any, that you expect the abated facility improvements to be
in service as patt of the operations of a producing facility, including

in your total any previous years of production prior to the date of this report.)

To the best of my knowledge, the above information and estimates are true and correct.

Owner:
By:
Printed Name:
Title/Position
Date:

Revised/Adopted effective 06/28/2022
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Ascend Performance Materials Texas, Inc. Perry and Austin League No.2
15.429 Acres Abstract No. 107

AN Unit
Tax Abatement Zone

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  §

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 15.429-acre tract in the Perry and Austin League
No. 2, Abstract No. 107, Brazoria County, Texas. Said 156.429-acre tract is in a 3,000 acre tract
described in a deed to Ascend Performance Materials Texas Inc. as recorded in Clerk’s File No.
2013007236 in the Brazoria County Clerk’'s Office and is more particularly described by metes
and bounds as follows:

COMMENCING at the most northerly corner of said Perry and Austin League No. 2, Abstract
No. 107, same being the most northerly corner of said 3,000 acre tract and is also the most
southerly west corner of the Perry and Austin League No. 7, Abstract No. 110 and is on the
southeasterly line of the Perry and Austin 1-3/4 League, Abstract No. 37;

THENCE, South 00°04'57" West, along the northeasterly line of said 3,000 acre tract, same
being the northeasterly line of said Perry and Austin League No. 2, Abstract No. 107, for a
distance of 11,240.38 feet to the most easterly corner of said 3,000 acre tract;

THENCE, North 89°57°33" West, along the southeasterly line of said 3,000 acre tract for a
distance of 9,056.01 feet to an angle point;

THENCE, North 00°02'27" East, for a distance of 4,125.52 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING
and southeast corner of the herein described 15.429-acre tract, said point is at the point of
intersection of a line 15-feet west of the centerline of 3rd Street and a line 15-feet north of the
centerline of “C” Street (Plant Coordinates: North 4,127.00°, West 1,431.00’).

THENCE, West, along a line 15-feet north of and parallel to the centerline of said "C” Street for
a distance of 576.00 feet to the southwest corner of the herein described tract;

THENCE, North, along a line 15-feet east of and parallel to the centerline of 6™ Street for a
distance of 954.00 feet to the northwest corner of the herein described tract;

THENCE, East, along a line 15-feet south of and parallel to the centerline of “E” Street for a
distance of 846.00 feet to the northeast corner of the herein described tract;




THENCE, South, along a line 15-feet west of and parallel to the centerline of 2™ Street for a
distance of 454.00 feet to the most northerly southeast corner of the herein described tract;

THENCE, West, along a line 15-feet north of and parallel to the centerline of “D” Street for a
distance of 270.00 feet to an interior corner of the herein described tract;

THENCE, South, along a line 15-feet west of and parallel to the centerline of the
aforementioned 3™ Street for a distance of 500.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING,
containing a computed area of 15.429-acres (672,090 square feet).

NOTES:

1. The bearings and coordinate shown hereon are based on the Ascend Plant Control
Monumentation System utilizing Plant Monument No. 2 (N 3519.00, W 515.00) and Plant
Monument No. 5 (N 5074.00, W 515.00).

2. The corners of this tract have not been monumented at the request of the client.

3. A separate exhibit map has been prepared in connection with this description.

4. This document was prepared under 22 TAC §663.21 and is not to be used to convey or
establish interests in real property except those rights and interests implied or
established by the creation or reconfiguration of the boundary of the political subdivision
for which it was prepared.

The Wilson Survey Group, Inc. [ ’

2006 East Broadway, Suite 103 7 | o P VON
Pearland, Texas 77588 Y Michael D. Wilson, R.P.L.S.

(281) 485-3991 Registration No. 4821

Job No. 22-133
TBPELS Firm No. 10014900 07/ (8 IZZ
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COPYRIGHT 2022, THE WILSON SURVEY GROUP, INC.

POINT OF
COMMENCING

NORTH CORNER OF
ASCEND PERFORMANCE
MATERIALS

3000 ACRE TRACT

POINT OF
COMMENCING

“>Z UNIT TAX

ABATEMENT ZONE
o m PROPERTY :zm.\\

SURVEY LINE '/

NOT TO SCALE)

1. BEARINGS AND COORDINATE SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE ASCEND
PLANT CONTROL MONUMENTATION UTILIZING PLANT MONUMENT NO. 2 (N
3519.00, W 515.00) AND PLANT MONUMENT NO. § (N 5074.00, % 513.00).

2 THE CORNERS OF THIS TRACT HAVE NOT BEEN MONUMENTED AT THE
REQUEST OF CLIENT.

3. A SEPARATE METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION HAS BEEN PREPARED IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS EXHIBIT,

4. THERE ARE IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THIS TRACT THAT HAVE NOT BEEN

SHOWN.
_

DATE: 07/18/22| 22~133(AN~UNIT).dwg

SCALE: 1"=200" | DWN: C.LH.

THE WILSON SURVEY GROUP
PROFESSIONAL  LAND  SURVEYORS
WAHG 2006 E. BROADWAY  PEARLAND, TEXAS

(281) 485-3991 FAX (281) 4B5-3998
T.B.P.ELS. FIRM NO. 10014900

EXHIBIT OF THE 15.429 ACRE AN UNIT TAX
ABATEMENT ZONE AT ASCEND PERFORMANCE
MATERIALS CHOCOLATE BAYOU, BRAZORIA
COUNTY, TEXAS
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CERTIFICATION OF APPRAISED VALUE OF
PROPERTIES AS OF JANUARY 1, 2022

TO: BRAZORIA COUNTY
FROM: BRAZORIA COUNTY APPRAISAL

DISTRICT DATE: wil ZC/ 2012

The Brazoria County Appraisal District hereby certifies that the following appraised values as of
January 1, 2022, for Ascend Performance Matetials Texas, Inc., attached hereto are listed in the records of Brazoria
County Appraisal District and indicated by the following account numbers:

See attached files

Certified this a‘s day of J “-*"l 4 , 20 39\

CHIEF APPRAISER /7
BRAZORIA COUNTY APPRA IS I?T/ :
BY: ' “—’%

#
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Appraisal Summary
Appraisal Year: 2022

Chocolate Bayou Plant ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERI
FM Road 2917 ASCEND PERFORMANCE Agent: Jeff Moore Appralser: Kirk Slaughter
Alvin, TX 77612 prallodlo . Agent Phone: (512) 691-2474 Date Inspected: 4/5/2022
DEPARTMENT
PO BOX 711

ALVIN, TX 775120711

Process Units

RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions  Retirements Market Value Component Account
AN 2 Unit 81,677,390 43  47.8772 81,347 3,087,230 0107-0003-000
AN 3 Unit 66,563,320 40 31.3833  43.72% 0.3000 6,048,780 0107-0003-000
AN 7 Unit 215,062,170 25 20.6720 29.06% 0.3000 2,409,369 11,107,440 0107-0003-000
Formalin Unit 12,343,920 40  40.2813 0.3000 864,900 0107-0003-000
IDA Unit 59,304,450 25 327407 1,500,000 6,034,330 0107-0003-000
NTA Unit 35,896,640 40  42.8590 0.3000 1,987,910 0107-0003-000
Total Process Units 459,847,800 - 2,409,369 1,681,347 28,130,590

Taxable Value: 28,130,590

Utilities

RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions  Retirements Market Value Component Account
Air Systems 7,272540 45 491305 ' 229,420  0107-0003-000
AN-7 Water Treatment & Ulilities 59,290,040 25 18.8216  39.42% 0.3000 5,854,720 0107-0003-000
(w/16.5% Eco)
Cooling Towers (w/16.5% Eco) 9,289,250 45 155837  88.41% 0.3000 2,057,260 0107-0003-000
Electrical System (w/16.5% Eco) 17,418,010 50 42,2095 38.58% 0.3000 1,683,330 0107-0003-000
Fuel Gas System 640,550 50 56.1167 14,880 0107-0003-000
Steam Distribution 16,108,680 50 56,0922 374,490 0107-0003-000
Sleam Generalion (w/16.5% Eco) 22,317,320 50  36.2069 58.40% 0.3000 3,264,840 0107-0003-000
Water Systems (w/16.5% Eco) 9,220,750 45  40.7632  23.59% 0.3000 644,880 0107-0003-000
Total Utilities 141,557,140 0 0 14,023,820

Taxable Value: 14,023,820

Thursday, June 2, 2022 o ' ) ) Pége 1o0f§



Chocolate Bayou Plant

FM Road 2917
Alvin, TX 77612

Appraisal Summary
Appraisal Year: 2022

ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERI

ASCEND PERFORMANCE Agent: Jeff Moore Appraiser: Kirk Slaughter
FATRIIALS LiG Agent Phone: (512) 691-2474 Date Inspected: 4/5/2022
ATTN: PROPERTY TAX gent Phone: (512) 691- nspected:
DEPARTMENT

PO BOX 711

ALVIN, TX 775120711

eceiv Shi Storage
~ RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions Retirements Market Value Component Account
AN 7 Receiving Shipping & Storage 16,697,870 33 217265  56.40% 0.3000 1,123,340 0107-0003-000
(w/60% Eco)
Docks 8,616,690 48  55.2645 207,040 0107-0003-000
Loading & Unloading Racks (w/60% Eco) 10,355,810 45 30.6657  61.06% 0.3000 758,790 0107-0003-000
Pumps & Piping (w/16.6% Eco) 7,733,160 45  26.23562  71.70% 0.5000 2,314,900 0107-0003-000
Rall Spurs 3,092,950 48  56.0226 72,060 0107-0003-000
Relrigerated tanks (w/60% Eco) 13,695,490 45  38.5504  33.78% 0.3000 555,160 0107-0003-000
Storage Tanks (w/16.5% Eco) 11,087,030 48  13.9460 91.86% 0.3000 2,561,230 0107-0003-000
Total Recelvina, Shipping & 71,179,000 0 0 7,582,520
Storage
Taxable Value: 7,582,520
Service Facilitles
RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions  Retirements Market Value Component Account
Fire Prolection Equipment (w/16% Eco) 3,205,770 45 34.5332  49.24% 0.3000 397,790 0107-0003-000
Site Improvements (Paving, Fence, etc) 14,493,150 45  38.7653  32.89% 0.3000 1,201,230 0107-0003-000
(W/16% Eco)
Total Service Facllities 17,698,920 0 0 1,599,020
Taxable Value: 1,599,020
General B s
RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions  Retirements Market Value Component Account
01. Engineering Building 3,496,400 45  51.3146 100,960 0107-0003-000
02. Administration Building 3,791,300 45 44,0000 6.10% 0.3000 187,600 0107-0003-000
Tltllrsday, June 2, 2022 Page 2 of 6



Chocolate Bayou Plant

FM Road 2917
Alvin, TX 77512

Appraisal Summary

Appraisal Year: 2022

ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERI

ASCEND PERFORMANCE
MATERIALS LLC

ATTN: PROPERTY TAX
DEPARTMENT

POBOX 711

ALVIN, TX 775120711

Agent:

Jeff Moore
Agent Phone: (512) 691-2474

Appraiser: Kirk Slaughter
Date Inspected: 4/5/2022

General Buildings

RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions  Retirements Market Value Component Account
03. Operalions Bldg. & Annexes 11,217,050 45  48.0000 ' 414,030 © 0107-0003-000
06. Stores & I/E Shop 2,139,080 45  51.3330 61,700 0107-0003-000
07. PTOR Building 936,080 45 51,3331 27,000 0107-0003-000
08. AWO Warehouse 2,184,180 45 51,3331 63,000 0107-0003-000
11. Contractor Lunch & Restrooms 1,028,170 45  48.9861 32,400 0107-0003-000
12. Contractor Fab Shop 2,109,230 45 51.3328 60,840 0107-0003-000
13. Contractor HVAC / I&E Shop 1,039,360 45  47.0832 42,500 0107-0003-000
18. Chemical Warehouse 1,697,480 45  51.3323 46,080 0107-0003-000
20. Contractor Paint Shop 693,390 45 51.3331 20,000 0107-0003-000
23, Distribution Offices 938,590 45  43.2744 10.32% 0.3000 49,380 0107-0003-000
24, Contr. Office(Ex Phenol C.R.) 368,930 45 37.5641  37.92% 0.3000 41,970 0107-0003-000
26. Shop 5 & Tool Room 920,270 45  48.9861 29,000 0107-0003-000
27. Electrical Contractor's Office 189,360 45 33.75656  51.83% 0.3000 29,440 0107-0003-000
ZBB.“((;Ihocolate Bayou Credit Union 727,240 45  47.0000 29,990 0107-0003-000

ullding
Miscellaneous Smaller Buildings (11) 3,829,300 45  43.2942  10.20% 0.3000 201,140 0107-0003-000
Total General Bujldings 37,205,410 0 0 1,437,030
Taxable Value: 1,437,030

Construction in Progress

Cost Age % Good Pct Compl Amt Spent Market Value Component Account

1,000,000 20 100.00% 0.5000 68,250 0107-0003-000

AN 7 Unit

Thursday, June 2, 2022
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Chocolate Bayou Plant

FM Road 2917
Alvin, TX 77512

Appraisal Summary
Appraisal Year: 2022

ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERI

ASCEND PERFORMANCE
MATERIALS LLC

ATTN: PROPERTY TAX
DEPARTMENT

POBOX 711

ALVIN, TX 776120711

Agent:

Jeff Moore
Agent Phone: (512) 691-2474

Appraiser: Kirk Slaughter
Date Inspected: 4/5/2022

Construc rogress
Cost Age % Good PctCompl Amt Spent Market Value Component Account
otal Constructio 1,000,000 0 68,250
Taxable Value: 68,250
CEQ Pollution C o| E
~ RCN Life Age % Good Svc Factor ‘Additions  Retirements Markeg Value Component Account
1999 TCEQ Non-Exempt Value 17,441,265 93.67% 857,610 0107-0003-000
1995 TCEQ Exempt Value 562,650 POLL-MONS-000
1996 TCEQ Exempt Value 110,250 POLL-MONS-000
1999 TCEQ Exempt Value 8,412,120 POLL-MONS-000
2006 TCEQ Exempt Value - ] - 79197.0807 POLL-MONS-000
Total TCEQ Pollution Control 17,441,265 0 0 10,891,710
Equipment
Taxable Value: 857,610
erso ope! Inv
v 7RCN Llfe i Agi % Good Svc Factor Additions Relirre!nentst_arket Value Component Account
Furniture & Fixtures 100.00% 1.0000 8,430 8900-0543-000
Lab/Test Equipment 100.00% 1.0000 1,192,960 8900-0543-000
Mobile Machinery & Equipment 100.00% 1.0000 53,170 8900-0543-000
Personal Computers 100.00% 1.0000 77,240 8900-0543-000
Vehicles 100.00% 1.0000 165,940 8900-0543-000
Inventory (FPT) 100.00% 1.0000 37,500,500 8900-0543-020
Personal Computers 100.00% 1.0000 9,670 8900-0543-050

Thursday, June 2, 2022

; 'Paga'-ri of



Chocolate Bayou Plant

FM Road 2917
Alvin, TX 77612

Appraisal Summary
Appraisal Year: 2022

ASCEND PERFORMANCE MATERI

ASCEND PERFORMANCE
MATERIALS LLC

ATTN: PROPERTY TAX
DEPARTMENT

PO BOX 711

ALVIN, TX 776120711

Agent: Jeff Moore
AgentPhone: (512) 691-2474

Appraiser: Kirk Slaughter
Date Inspected: 4/6/2022

ersonal Property & Invent
- RcN Life Age % Good Svc Factor Additions  Retirements Market Value Component Account
Total Pergonal Property & Inventory 0 0 0 39,007,910
Taxable Value: 39,007,910
Total Chocolate Bayou 746,929,626 2,409,369 1,681,347 102,740,860
Plant Taxahle Value: 92,706,760

Thursday, June 2, 2022

Total value of existing improvements for RZ: AN2, AN3 and AN7: $26,169,570

Total value of existing personal property (CIP) for RZ: $68,250
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